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Our vision

Our purpose

Our commitment

Building a better 
Western Australia 
together.

To enhance the quality of life and 
wellbeing for all Western Australians 
through the funding and support we 
provide to our beneficiaries and by 
running our lottery business with 
excellence and integrity.

We are a government enterprise that aims 
to be the preferred provider of lottery 
games, optimise delivery, and maximise 
returns and value to Western Australians.

• Sales per adult

• Total returns to beneficiaries per capita

• Total returns to beneficiaries as a % of sales

• Lottery operations expenses as a % of sales

• Grants operations expenses as a % of direct 
grants approved.

Our key measures

Customer focused
We align our business culture to the ever-evolving needs and requirements of 
the people and organisations we work with. We offer products, services and 
solutions to provide the best possible customer experience.

Upbeat
We enjoy working for a vibrant organisation, providing hope and opportunity. We 
are bold, motivated and confident in our collective ability.

Authentic
We are true to ourselves by being open, honest and committed.

Smart
We find ways to do the right things better.

Reliable
We provide clarity of expectation, consistency of delivery and quality outcomes.

Adaptable
We know our business and our environment. We make the most of opportunities 
and choose when and how to change.

Our values
About Lotterywest
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Based on accrual amount

Based on cash flow Based on cash flow

2018-19  
highlights

$985.3m

$454.6m

$281.7m

Lottery 
sales

Prizes to 
Western 

Australians

Contribution 
back to the 
community
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Where does the money go?

Prizes
50%

Marketing and 
distribution

2%

Employee benefits
2%

GST paid
4%

Increase cash and 
investments held
6%
Retailer 
commissions
7%

Supplies and services 
(ex marketing)

2%

Grants payments
27%

Where does the money 
come from?

Sale of lottery 
products
95%

Interest
1%

Retailer fees
1%

GST recoup
3%



2018-19 sales and return to the community
Our games
Total sales of $985 million

Our winners
Total prizes to WA winners of $454.6 million

58 44

$18 million

$18 million

$102 million

88%

12%
48%

52%

$143.7 million
to Western Australia’s hospitals and public health services 
(Department of Health)

approved in Lotterywest direct grants

to Sport and Recreation  
(Department of Local Government, Sport 
and Cultural Industries) 

Division One 
winners for 
2018-19

Top Prize 
winners for 
Scratch’n’Win 
2018-19

to Culture and Arts (Department 
of Local Government, Sport and 
Cultural Industries)

of total sales

of total 
sales

505 retail outlets =

Online 
sales = Play Online

Lotterywest 
Mobile App

Our beneficiaries
Allocated more than $281.7 million to the WA community

Our distribution channels

-  $15.4 million to The University of Western Australia (UWA) for the Perth Festival and to Screenwest for the 
investment in the WA Screen Industry.

-  $86.6 million to other not-for-profit organisations and local government authorities. 

Lotterywest approved 682 grants to 613 different not-for-profit organisations and local government authorities.

Total prizes to 
WA winners of 
$454.6 million

$281.7  
million
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2018-19 
winners

58 $81.9
million

4 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$4 
million

1 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$10 
million

7 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$7 
million

1 
Division One 

winner 
collected 

$3 
million

42 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$43.5 
million

44 
Top Prize 
winners 

shared in 

$4.1 
million

$20,000 
per month for 

20 years
3

1st Prize 
winners will 

collect

In WA

In total, WA won over $454.6 million across all Lotterywest products.

Division One 
winners shared
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WA’s trio of Lotto wins
It’s been a lucky weekend for three Western 
Australian ticket holders, with a Saturday Lotto 
Division One ticket and two 1st Prize Set For Life 
tickets being produced in just two days.

February 2019

February 2019

April 2019

Hump day treat: Albany 
makes a mid-week millionaire
Last night’s Wednesday Lotto draw has delivered 
Western Australia’s 18th Division One winner so far 
this year, with Plaza Lotteries in Albany producing a 
$1 million winning ticket.

Kalgoorlie strikes gold with 
$3 million Powerball win
Kalgoorlie has struck gold tonight after producing 
a winning Lotto ticket holding the entire $3 million 
Powerball jackpot.

November 2018December 2018

Perfect end to the year as 
four WA Megadraw tickets 
pick up $1.7 million each
Four local tickets took home a prize in tonight’s $30 
million Saturday Lotto Megadraw.

Albany syndicate of 22 
celebrate $10 million Lotto win
Western Australia’s $10 million OZ Lotto winners 
have been revealed as a 22 member syndicate 
from Albany.

October 2018

Dream win for Treendale 
scratchie winner
A woman from Treendale literally followed her 
dreams when she bought a $100,000 winning 
Scratch’n’Win ticket.
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Chair foreword
For more than 85 years, Lotterywest has stayed 
true to its dream of ‘Building a better Western 
Australia Together’ by raising money to develop 
a more cohesive society and support the most 
vulnerable people in our community.

So it is particularly pleasing to announce that this year 
we have enjoyed record sales, meaning our returns to the 
community are also at record levels. 

In 2018-19 we enjoyed sales of more than $985 million, which 
equated to a 15 per cent increase on the previous year. 

Lotterywest returns its profits to the community in two 
ways: through statutory grants to the Government portfolios 
of health, sport and the arts with the respective Ministers 
responsible for the distribution of funds, and through 
Lotterywest’s direct grants to community organisations and 
local government.

The overall return to the community was $282 million of 
which $102 million was in direct grants. 

The grants range from $1,000 for a local bush fire brigade, 
to multi-million dollar grants such as $6.5 million for new 
jets for the Royal Flying Doctor Service and $4.6 million to 

RSLWA towards a multipurpose service hub for veterans 
and their families.

The vast majority of the work undertaken by the grants 
team, and ultimately the Board and the Premier as 
Minister, is to assess and support local, community-based 
Western Australian organisations to make a difference. 
Last financial year we approved 682 grants, including 34 
to first-time recipients.

Our grant-giving through both Lotterywest and Healthway 
is driven by the Community Investment Framework, which 
the Board approved in August 2018. Its pillars or priority 
areas are: Active Healthy People, Protected Sustainable 
Ecosystems, Inclusive Thriving Community, Connected 
Cultural Experiences and Smart Innovative Society.

Another one of our focused efforts this year has been 
how to effectively assess the impact of our grants and 
Lotterywest’s purpose in supporting the community. The 
result is the development of a Grant Outcome Index Library 
that will evaluate grants against the aims of the Community 
Investment Framework as well as a WA Index of Wellbeing 
Library that measures wellbeing and population level trends 
across the five areas of the framework. This work is ongoing.



About Lotterywest 9

As a Government entity and iconic WA brand, Lotterywest 
has a special responsibility to ensure that we remain 
at the forefront of harm prevention in our games and 
business practices.

To that end, Lotterywest holds responsible gambling 
accreditation from the World Lottery Association, and we 
aim to upgrade to the highest accreditation this upcoming 
financial year.

With the bringing together of Healthway and Lotterywest 
there has been a change in Board arrangements and it is my 
honour to serve as the Chair for both the Lotterywest and 
Healthway Boards. 

I would like to thank all Board members for their contribution 
to Lotterywest over the last twelve months. I particularly 
thank former Chair Ms Heather Zampatti for her invaluable 
contribution to Lotterywest over the past three years. Ms 
Zampatti continues to be a valued Board member on the 
Healthway Board. 

I also thank Ms Andrea Hall who leaves the Lotterywest 
Board after six years as an active contributor to the Board. 

This financial year we also welcomed Mr Jim McGinty AM 
to the Lotterywest Board. Mr McGinty previously served a 

19-year term as the State Government Member for Fremantle 
and has had an eminent career, holding senior positions 
within the Western Australian State Government as Minister 
for Health, Attorney-General and Leader of the Opposition. 

I would also like to thank all of the Lotterywest team led 
by Susan Hunt PSM and the Corporate Executive for their 
outstanding work during the past year. 

In addition I thank the Premier of Western Australia as the 
responsible Minister for Lotterywest, for his support during 
the year. 

Professor Peter Klinken AC FAHMS FTSE CitWA 
Chair

The vast majority of the work... 

is to assess and support local, 

community-based Western Australian 

organisations to make a difference.

Image: Lotterywest retailer Tim at Telethon Kids Institute 
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CEO executive summary
This year Lotterywest is proud to celebrate a 
year of record sales and record returns to the 
Western Australian community, in what has 
been a challenging environment. 

Contributing factors to this record-breaking amount have 
been the Powerball jackpot reaching $100 million twice 
during the financial year, OZ Lotto reaching $80 million 
and successful Superdraw campaigns. Achieving this 
milestone is a team effort. External factors include the State 
Government’s willingness to address the threat posed by 
synthetic lotteries with legislative changes which came into 
effect 1 February, 2019; our close and successful working 
relationship with other lotteries in the Australian Lotteries 
Bloc; our hard-working Lotterywest retailers and Western 
Australians who play our games. 

Internal factors include the work of the Lotterywest team and 
rollout and alignment to our 2018-23 Strategic Plan, which 
gives clear direction and focus to our operations.

Last year the Australian Lotto Blocs, including Lotterywest, 
agreed to make changes to Powerball to facilitate bigger 
jackpots. Following these changes we have to date delivered 
two $100 million jackpots and Powerball’s sales are up an 
unprecedented 75 per cent on the previous financial year.

This increase in sales has contributed to a record amount 
of Lotterywest grants, with $281.7 million given away this 
financial year, in direct and statutory grants. 

Our retailers are the sales face of Lotterywest and continue 
to be responsible for almost 90 per cent of Lotterywest sales. 
This year we have continued to work closely with retailers to 
further build working relationships with positive results. 

During the year, the decision was made to increase gross 
retailer commissions from 9 per cent to 10 per cent for 
most games. This was announced by the Premier of 
Western Australia, the Hon. Mark McGowan MLA on 6 
June, 2019. The commission increase will come into effect 
in December 2019 and forms part of a larger package of 
initiatives designed to boost sales, secure long-term retailer 
sustainability and contribute a strong community return 
through Lotterywest grants. 

Strengthening communication with retailers has been a 
focus this past year and we have implemented a range of 
events bringing our retailers and grant recipients together, 
including 60 retailers and their families enjoying a tour 
of the Telethon Kids Institute Discovery Centre at Perth 
Children’s Hospital. 
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Internally at Lotterywest we focused our efforts to embed 
our Strategic Plan, the building blocks of which are creating 
public value, excellent customer experience, smarter 
internal processes and optimising capability. Ensuring 
that we have the right people in the right roles is a key to 
successful implementation.

I’d like to congratulate Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis on taking 
on the role of General Manager Lotteries this year with 
oversight of all aspects of the lotteries business. The 
restructure of the Planning and Market Development and 
Lotteries Operations business units under one general 
manager has allowed this area to concentrate on its core 
operations of running a quality lottery, while streamlining and 
clarifying roles and responsibilities across the organisation 
through one consolidated team.

In our grants area, working with the Lotterywest Board and 
other stakeholders, we have finalised the new Lotterywest 
Healthway Community Investment Framework. This aims 
to build on the effectiveness and outcomes of our grants. 
Through continuing work in community and social impact 
analysis we will be able to better measure the impact of our 
grants on the Western Australian community. 

I congratulate Ms Lorna Pritchard on her appointment as 
General Manager, Grants and Community Development 
during the year. I also extend my thanks to her predecessor, 
Ms Jacquie Thompson who worked in the grants area for 
most of her 25 years at Lotterywest. Jacquie’s last role was as 
General Manager, Lottery Operations. 

The Service Level Arrangement (SLA) between Healthway 
and Lotterywest, which was agreed in January 2019 has 
been a smooth transition with small changes making a big 
impact in terms of efficiency and shared resources. The 
SLA brought the two entities together at our Subiaco office 
with one CEO and Board Chair, and is expected to save an 
estimated $4.2 million over the next four years. 

The WA Government’s Service Priority Review, which aims 
to create an efficient, innovative and effective public service 
that delivers outcomes for the community, informed the 
guiding principles of our actions. 

Lotterywest launched a new ‘Dream State’ marketing 
campaign on WA Day, 3 June, 2019. The campaign 
strengthens and raises awareness of the impact of sales 
in contributing to better outcomes for the State through 
community grants and funding support to health, the 
arts and sport. This focus is balanced by our continuing 
commitment to ensure our Lotterywest games are managed 
and delivered responsibly and aligned to our purpose and 
values. 

I would like to thank the Lotterywest team, the Hon. Mark 
McGowan MLA, the Premier of Western Australia, and the 
Lotterywest and Healthway Board, led by Chair Professor 
Peter Klinken AC and previously Ms Heather Zampatti, for 
their support during my two years as CEO of Lotterywest. 

Ms Susan Hunt PSM 
Chief Executive Officer

Image: Rebound WA



Lotterywest’s commitment to these jets 
is a significant investment in the state’s 
wider health and emergency services 
infrastructure that will put time on our side 
for saving lives 
Rebecca Tomkinson,  
CEO RFDS Western Operations 
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Organisational 
structure 

Board of Commissioners 
Peter Klinken AC (Chair) 

Miriam Borthwick 
Stephen Carre 

Elisabeth McLellan  
Kingsley Dixon 

Jim McGinty AM 

Chief Executive Officer 
Susan Hunt PSM

Minister Responsible 
Hon. Mark McGowan MLA 

Premier

Executive Support Media and Communications

Corporate  
Services

General Manager

Jeremy Hubble CFO

Grants and Community 
Development

General Manager

Lorna Pritchard

Lotteries
General Manager

Ioannis Gerothanasis

Analysis and Monitoring

Development and Assurance

Lottery Operations and 
Support

Lottery Strategy

Marketing and Sales

Grant Administration and 
Support

Grants Development and 
Partnerships

Community Impact and 
Analysis

Health Promotion

Business Services

Finance Services

Information Services

Legal Services

People and Culture

Planning

Risk Management and Audit
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Professor Peter Klinken AC FAHMS FTSE CitWA 
(Chair) joined the Lotterywest Board as Chair in October 
2018, taking over from Heather Zampatti. Professor Klinken 
is an eminent leader, academic, scientist and for over 
15 years was the Director of Western Australia Institute 
of Medical Research, and the Harry Perkins Institute of 
Medical Research. Presently, he is the Chief Scientist of 
Western Australia and was made a Companion of the Order 
of Australia in 2017. Professor Klinken graduated from the 
University of Western Australia with a Bachelor of Science, 
a PhD in Biochemistry, and Diploma of Education, and is 
also the Chair of the WA Health Promotion Foundation 
(Healthway Board). 

Mr Stephen Carre joined the Lotterywest Board in 
December 2013. Mr Carre brings a wealth of experience as a 
small business owner of his multi-award winning IGA store 
in Swanbourne. He also has interests in food and distribution 
as the Managing Director of Farm to Table, which supports 
farmers to distribute their products to independent retailers 
and supermarkets. Mr Carre is also a Board member of 
Healthway and has held senior roles at Bankwest, and 
worked nationally with Westpac, National Australia Bank and 
Insurance Australia Group. He is a CPA and has a Bachelor 
of Business and MBA. He is a Fellow of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors.

Corporate structure 
Board of Management

Ms Miriam Borthwick joined the Lotterywest Board 
in April 2015. She is an experienced journalist, strategic 
communications specialist and media relations advisor. She 
is Senior Media Advisor to the Harry Perkins Institute of 
Medical Research and consults to a wide range of clients. 
Ms Borthwick is currently a Board member of Healthway, 
Rocky Bay and the Hale School Foundation. She sits on 
various committees including Women in Media and Rowing 
WA’s philanthropic program Making Waves. She is a 
graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 
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Ms Elisabeth McLellan joined the Lotterywest Board in 
January 2018. Ms McLellan is a leading conservationist 
based in Geraldton and has spent more than 25 years 
at the forefront of conservation, including over 15 years 
working on endangered species conservation in Africa, 
Asia and Australia with WWF. Ms McLellan now works with 
Bush Heritage Australia in a regional management role 
that sees her responsible for delivering landscape-scale 
conservation impacts at three conservation properties in 
Midwest Australia. Ms McLellan is a member of the Shark 
Bay World Heritage Advisory Committee, and a member 
of the International Union for Conservation of Nature’s 
(IUCN) World Commission on Protected Areas and Species 
Survival Commission. She holds a Bachelor of Science 
(Hons), Masters of Applied Science and a Graduate 
Diploma of Education. 

Professor Kingsley Dixon joined the Lotterywest Board in 
December 2017. Professor Dixon is a renowned botanist and 
Western Australia’s 2016 Scientist of the Year. Throughout 
his career, Professor Dixon has played a leading role in 
conserving threatened species and transforming ecological 
restoration practice in Australia. Holding a Bachelor of 
Science (Hons) and PhD from the University of Western 
Australia, Professor Dixon is also a Board member of the 
International Society for Ecological Restoration, Foundation 
Chair of The Society for Ecological Restoration Australasia, 
co-chair of the IUCN Orchid Specialist Group, Foundation 
Chair of the International Network for Seed Based 
Restoration, and member of the federal Threatened Species 
Scientific Committee and the Alligator Rivers Research and 
Technical Committee.

Hon. Jim McGinty AM BA B.Juris (Hons) LLB joined the 
Lotterywest Board in August 2018. During his 19-year term as 
Member for Fremantle in the Western Australian Parliament 
he held positions of Minister for Health (2003–08), 
Attorney-General (2001-08) and Leader of the Opposition 
(1994-96). As Attorney-General, he is recognised for his 
contribution to law reform to reflect 21st century standards 
and values. Among his community commitments Mr 
McGinty is Chair of North Metropolitan Health Service, Chair 
of Communicare, Deputy Chair of Access Housing Australia 
and a Board member of Healthway. He is a former Board 
member of Telethon Kids Institute and Brightwater Care 
Group. He also volunteers with Fremantle Sea Rescue.
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Corporate structure 
Leadership team

Ms Susan Hunt PSM

Ms Susan Hunt PSM commenced as Chief Executive 
Officer of Lotterywest in July 2017, and in January 2018 
was concurrently appointed Chief Executive Officer 
for Healthway, another Western Australian statutory 
organisation. From 2004-17 she was the CEO of Perth 
Zoo, following a career in public policy, conservation and 
research. Susan was the President of the World Association 
of Zoos and Aquariums from 2015-17, and of the Australasian 
Zoo Association from 2007-11. Susan has previously served 
as a Board Member of the Trustee of the International 
Species Information System, is on the Board of VenuesWest 
as well as an invitee on the Board of the Perth Festival. 
Susan is a Fellow of the Australian and New Zealand School 
of Government and in 2017 was made an Australian Fellow 
of the Institute of Public Administration (IPAA). She has 
received an IPAA Patrons Award and in 2010 was awarded 
a Public Service Medal for her outstanding contribution to 
public service.

Image: Lotterywest and Healthway staff at Subiaco train station as part of wellness 
program initiative to encourage staff to actively commute to work appointments
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Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis

Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis leads Lotterywest’s Lotteries 
business unit which is responsible for Marketing and Sales, 
Operations and Support, Business and Game Development, 
and key lottery projects. He has 18 years of international 
management experience working for large multi-national 
organisations on projects in the Asia Pacific, North and 
South America, Europe and the Middle East, initially in the 
travel and tourism industry, and later in the lottery industry. 
Ioannis has substantial experience in project and program 
management, information technology and public and 
private sector tendering. He holds a Bachelor of Business in 
Management and Organisational Behaviour.

Ms Lorna Pritchard 

For over 25 years Lorna Pritchard has worked as a 
professional leader with communities to support the 
development of their great ideas, identify and build the 
capacity of community leaders, strengthen community and 
family values, and broker solutions to emerging and existing 
issues. Throughout her career, Lorna has chosen roles where 
she can make such an impact and contribution and is a key 
champion of community and Lotterywest support. She drives 
success, embraces change and new initiatives, and works 
to ensure Lotterywest continues to be the lead grant maker 
agency in WA. In her seven-and-a-half years at Lotterywest, 
Lorna has held leadership roles in the Grants & Community 
Development Team, before being appointed to the General 
Manager role this year. Lorna holds a Bachelor of Arts in 
Maori Development majoring in Social Work, from Auckland 
University of Technology.

Mr Jeremy Hubble 

Mr Jeremy Hubble leads the financial, human resources, 
information, physical and technology-related support 
functions critical to Lotterywest’s operations. He is 
responsible for overarching financial management, 
governance, statutory compliance and technology partner 
for the lottery gaming system. Jeremy is a qualified Chartered 
Accountant with substantial experience in commerce 
and government. He has extensive corporate governance 
experience and is a member of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors. Before joining Lotterywest, Jeremy was 
a senior executive in both State and local Government for 
20 years and has held senior positions in major accounting 
and public commercial entities. He holds a Bachelor of 
Business degree and a Master of Business Administration.
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Our services

Sale of lottery 
products to the public 
of Western Australia

Provision of grants 
and other distributions 
to the community of 
Western Australia

Functions in accordance with 
the Service Level Arrangement 
with Healthway

Government priorities
 • A strong economy

 • A bright future

 • A safer community

 • A liveable environment

 • Aboriginal wellbeing

 • Regional prosperity

Our purpose
To enhance the quality of life 
and wellbeing for all Western 
Australians through the funding 
and support we provide to our 
beneficiaries and by running our 
lottery business with excellence 
and integrity.

 • Sales per adult

 • Total allocation to beneficiaries per capita

 • Total allocation to beneficiaries as a % of sales

 • Lottery operations expenses as a % of sales

 • Grants operations expenses as a % of direct grants approved.

Our key performance indicators

The State Government has six priority areas with whole of government targets to deliver better outcomes for all Western Australians. Lotterywest contributes to these priorities by fulfilling 
our purpose to enhance the quality of life and wellbeing for all Western Australians through the funding and support we provide to our beneficiaries and by running our lottery business with 
excellence and integrity.

Alignment to government priorities
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Strategic framework
Lotterywest’s 2018-23 Strategic Plan contains five focus areas, each with a key focus identifying expectations for the organisation by 2023.

O
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Stakeholder 
management

Operating our 
business

Products and 
services Channel Brand

Lotterywest is trusted and 
valued by its key stakeholders 

(Government, retailers, 
beneficiaries and customers, 

the Bloc) as a proficient, 
reliable and fair partner in all 

our interactions.

Creating public value

Delivering excellent customer experience

Smarter internal processes

Optimising capability

Delivering increasing 
public value to Western 

Australia through the 
right combination of skills, 
technology and process.

An expanded customer 
base that is increasingly 

satisfied, loyal, and 
active in consuming our 
products and services.

Sustainably distributing 
products and services to 

customers where they are, 
how and when they want.

Brand equity making us 
Western Australia’s lottery and 

grant-maker of choice, and 
for it to strengthen our social 

licence to operate.
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Significant issues impacting the agency

Key response Key responseKey response

Competition and 
brand awareness 

Challenges facing 
not-for-profit 
organisations

Competition and brand awareness remain 
challenging in an increasingly crowded market. 
Despite recent legislative changes banning 
synthetic lotteries, substitute products from 
competitors continue to pressure Lotterywest’s 
product relevance.

Continuously reviewing our products, brand, 
communications and marketing strategies to remain 
relevant and effective.

Challenges facing not-for-profit organisations 
are affecting business sustainability, which 
together with declining levels of corporate and 
philanthropic support, reduces funds available to 
meet community need.

Continuing our responsive and agile community 
development approach by working closely with our 
stakeholders. The application of the new Community 
Investment Framework to grant-making provides a 
strong basis and clear strategic intent for this work. 

Subdued economic 
climate and slowing 
population growth

Subdued economic climate and slowing population 
growth including reduced household discretionary 
income, declining retail confidence and a continuing 
priority for government efficiencies. 

Continually review and seek organisational 
efficiencies to maximise returns and social value to the 
Western Australian community.
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Key responseKey response Key response

Increased cyber risk

Increased cyber risk creates ongoing risks to the 
integrity of the Lotterywest’s operating systems and to 
consumer confidence in our products. 

Implementing the highest possible cyber security 
measures and up-to-date technology systems remain 
a strong priority.

Trends in 
demographic and 
consumer behaviour 

Trends in demographic and consumer behaviour show 
growing demand for online options, customer choice 
in accessing products and the continued delivery of 
quality in-store retail experiences.

The ongoing successful implementation of the 
findings of the distribution investigation which 
was finalised in 2018-19 enables us to pursue 
new strategies and initiatives in cooperation with 
Lotterywest retailers.

Harm from gambling

Some players of Lotterywest’s games may be 
affected by gambling addiction, resulting in 
individual and community harm.

Lotterywest is committed to being a global leader in 
its response to responsible gambling. The highest 
lottery accreditation level is being sought in 2019-20. 
Lotterywest continues to support initiatives for those 
affected by problem gambling, and to build knowledge 
and effectiveness on minimising harm from the use of 
lotteries products. 
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Healthway integration
January saw the integration and formalisation of Lotterywest 
and the Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 
(Healthway), with the two entities entering into a formal 
Service Level Arrangement (SLA). Under the SLA, 
Lotterywest provides services to Healthway, and Lotterywest 
charges Healthway a fee for these services based on 
cost recovery. Healthway staff have become Lotterywest 
employees and Healthway uses the services of Lotterywest 
staff to perform its functions. Ms Susan Hunt PSM remains 
the Chief Executive Officer of both entities, which are 
co-located at the Subiaco Head Office. 

The implementation of the SLA has been successful, with 
efficiencies resulting from integration of administration and 
executive services being achieved and savings returned to 
Government. Work to boost these efficiencies and to further 
integrate activities and services for community benefit will 
continue. 

Distribution investigation
Lotterywest games are sold by hundreds of small, local 
businesses and retailers right across Western Australia. 
These outlets deliver almost  90 per cent of Lotterywest 
sales. 

The long-term sustainability of businesses that retail 
Lotterywest games has been identified as a significant and 
ongoing challenge in Lotterywest product distribution.

In response to a request by the Premier in 2017, Lotterywest 
undertook a substantial body of work exploring factors 
affecting Lotterywest retailers and the distribution and 

sale of Lotterywest games. This work was overseen by a 
specialist panel comprising a senior representative from the 
Small Business Development Commission, an experienced 
and highly regarded economist, a Lotterywest Board 
representative with direct small business experience and our 
Chief Executive Officer. The role of the panel was to provide 
guidance throughout the investigation, assure the breadth 
and quality of the work undertaken, provide feedback on 
interim findings and to review the final report. 

Major findings of the work included:

 • Challenge of sustainability for Lotterywest and its small 
business partners affecting Lotterywest’s ability to 
maintain current level of community returns 

 • Opportunities for sales growth for Lotterywest and its 
small business partners

 • Opportunities for Lotterywest to improve its engagement 
and service standards and delivery to its small business 
partners.

The final report was provided to the Lotterywest Board and 
Premier in late 2018. 

In response to its findings, a package of initiatives was 
announced in June 2019.  This included: 

 • A 1 per cent increase in gross commissions payable to 
all retailers on most Lotterywest games bringing gross 
commission on those games to 10 per cent. This will take 
effect in December 2019.

 • Opportunities for retailers to benefit from growth in online 
sales through a proposed e-Tail approach which will share 
an online commission for member purchases associated 
with a retailer.

 • An enhanced membership program and targeted 
promotions to drive retail sales.

 • Digital communications initiatives allowing retailers to 
have their store details included in communications to 

local customers.

 • A suite of third-party support services for retailer 
businesses including mentoring, sales coaching and 
player insights.

 • Ongoing retail location optimisation.

 • Improved Lotterywest retailer management and support 
services. 

Agency 
performance

Cyber security uplift 
Lotterywest is accredited under the World Lottery 
Association’s Security Control Standard and complies with 
ISO 27001 ‘Information Security Management’. Elements of 
the Cyber Security Uplift project were completed during 
the year. This included improving password security, 
enhanced system monitoring, process reviews and external 
penetration testing. The project is ongoing as a priority area 
for Lotterywest. 

Data centre outsourcing
Accessible, reliable and secure data and systems are critical 
to Lotterywest’s success. As part of decommissioning 
Lotterywest’s previous head office located in Osborne Park, 
the primary data centre was transferred to Lotterywest’s 
Subiaco premises and a new externally provided back up 
data centre was commissioned in 2019. This relocation 
provides a more secure and stable environment, including 
for potential crisis events. 

Gaming system upgrade
An upgrade of the replacement gaming system which 
commenced under the Lotterywest Retail Transformation 
Project was completed during the year. This has resulted 
in increased operating stability and system availability for 
Lotterywest and for Lotterywest retailers. 
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Products and services

Neighbourhood 
shopping centre

Player channels 
Lotterywest’s products are available through retail and 
online channels. As at 30 June 2019, there are 503 full service 
lottery stores in our retail network, a reduction of four stores. 

Shopfit and signage refresh
The work on updating shopfits and signage across 
Lotterywest retailers continued during the year. To date, 
289 retailers implemented the new Lotterywest retail image, 
while 166 retailers upgraded their stores to reflect the 
Lotterywest brand.

More stores will undergo shopfits in 2019-20 as we work 
towards brand consistency. 

The cost to Lotterywest of the new shopfits and signage 
during 2018-19 was $2.27 million.

Retail network changes

New stores

Change of 
ownership

Relocations

3

32

19

30

12

8

2018-19  2017-18

Regional 
shopping centre

Stand alone 

Retail strip 

Lotterywest retailers by business environment

Retail

Online

Player channels

87.8%

12.2%

Country 

Locations of Lotterywest retailers

Total 
outlets
505

Metro

71%357

148 29%

Total 
outlets
505

67 (13%)

50 (10%) (1 Scratch’n’Win only)
157 (31%)

231 (46%)
(1 Scratch’n’Win only)

Convenience store

Supermarket

Pharmacy
Newsagency

DelicatessenKiosk

Lotterywest retailers’ primary business type

395 (78%) 
(1 Scratch’n’Win only)

39 (8%)
(1 Scratch’n’Win only)

6 (1%)

16 (3%)
37 (7%)

12 (3%)
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Retailers’ Consultative Panel
The Lotterywest Retailer Consultative Panel (RCP) consists 
of a representative group of retailers who meet with 
Lotterywest to provide their knowledge and experience 
on key issues, such as customer feedback and retailer 
performance. Lotterywest also uses the forum as a sounding 
board for new approaches which may affect retailers, 
including planned products and marketing campaigns.

A representative from the Australian Lotteries and 
Newsagents Association (ALNA) now regularly attend RCP 
meetings. This past year there has also been regular positive 
contact with ALNA and Lotterywest staff. This collegial 
approach has assisted Lotterywest to better understand the 
needs of Lotterywest retailers.

Incentives and rewards
The annual ‘Rewards 4 Growth’ incentive program 
recognises and rewards retailer efforts in increasing sales of 
all Lotterywest products. In 2018-19, $444,650 was paid to 
323 retailers under the program.

This past year Lotterywest also ran ‘sales sprints’, designed 
to reward retailers for specific product sales achieved 
over short periods of time. This helps support Lotterywest 
marketing campaigns and activities and resulted in a total of 
$115,950 in rewards being shared with 194 retailers.

Across all incentives and rewards programs, 361 Lotterywest 
retailers received a total of $560,000, which was a decrease 
of 7.78 per cent from the 2017-18 financial year. This reduction 
was primarily due to retailers not meeting the reward targets 
set during the year. 

Retailer training 
During the year Lotterywest increased the suite of 
e-Learning programs offered to retailers, while continuing 
with core classroom programs. 

In January 2019 a new learning management system was 
launched to improve the retailers’ experience. This included 
an individualised dashboard with the ability to expand 
training offerings to include webinars and also live streaming. 
Courses which occurred during the year and the number of 
attendees are as follows:

Training course
Courses 

conducted
Attendees

Manage a lottery outlet 12 89
Lotterywest essentials 28 121
e-Learning n/a 319

In August 2018, retailers were welcomed to the biennial 
Lotterywest Retailer Conference at the Perth Convention 
and Exhibition Centre. The conference featured Brian Walker, 
CEO of The Retail Doctor Group, as keynote speaker and for 
the first time incorporated trade displays from key strategic 
and operational partners.

Total incentives and rewards paid

2018-19 $560,000
$607,2322017-18
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Customer Services
During the year there were 107,715 customer service 
interactions with Lotterywest players and retailers. This 
was via a number of channels, with a range of services 
provided, including teaching players about our games, 
troubleshooting assistance for retailer terminals and 
greeting the hundreds of winners that visit Lotterywest 
head office to claim high value prizes. Lotterywest’s busiest 
times coincided with the two $100 million jackpots which 
occurred in August 2018 and January 2019.

Customer satisfaction initiatives
During the year Lotterywest conducted two customer 
satisfaction initiatives. These were a customer satisfaction 
survey for players and retailers, and a post phone call survey. 

The customer satisfaction survey was sent to 1,215 players. 
86.2 per cent were ‘satisfied’ or ‘very satisfied’ with the 
service received, an improvement of over 7 per cent from the 
previous survey which was conducted in February 2018. 

Results of the retailer survey revealed that 94.5 per cent of 
respondents rated the customer service they received as 
‘excellent’ or ‘good’.

Lotterywest has a system in place which invites phone 
customers to take part in a survey once their call is 
completed. 1,300 retailers and players were polled in this 
fashion and more than 85 per cent of respondents indicated 
they were satisfied with the overall customer experience, up 
half a percent from the previous year.

Complaints
The Complaints Management Policy was introduced in 2018 
and with the resulting combined effort and commitment of 
the Lotterywest team, there have been improvements in the 
way Lotterywest manages complaints. 

During the year more than 80 per cent of complaints 
received were resolved to the complainant’s satisfaction 
within 15 business days, reaching the agreed internal target. 

A Customer Service Charter was developed to support 
the Complaints Management Policy, and represents a 
commitment on how we endeavour to deliver our services 
and how we work with customers who contact us. 

Image: Sam Clark Customer Services Engagement Officer Image: Dusty Lock Concierge Officer
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Product 
sales

Saturday Lotto 

$284m

Monday Lotto 

$27.8m

Wednesday Lotto 

$31m

Set for Life 

$54.2m

Powerball 

$281.9m

Cash 3 

$12.1m

Super 66 

$3.4m

Scratch’n’Win 

$111.9m

OZ Lotto 

$179m

$985.3m
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Retailer profiles
Keeping up with Kanyana
It ’s not every day that you can turn your day job into 
your passion, but one mother and daughter team have 
done just that.

Karen and her daughter Jessica have been retailers at 
Roleystone Newsagency for more than five years.

Jessica’s unwavering fondness for animals and the 
environment has led her to recycle old plush toys to sell 
in-store, with profits going to Kanyana Wildlife Rehabilitation 
Centre.

In addition, their efforts in selling Lotto tickets have 
contributed to a Lotterywest grant of $10,500 to support 
Kanyana in April 2019. 

“It’s a win-win,” she said.

“The toys don’t go to landfill and we get to support a local 
organisation.

“I let customers know Lotterywest has given a grant to 
Kanyana and the Roleystone Men’s Shed and they get 
excited when they realise they’re supporting the local 
community.

“When you can see local grants making a difference 
first-hand, customers realise Lotterywest is supporting 
wonderful causes right on their doorstep.”

I let customers know Lotterywest has given a grant 
to Kanyana and the Roleystone Men’s Shed and they 
get excited when they realise they’re supporting the 
local community.

A Lotto life
From the age of nine, Patricia Deller helped her father 
in their family-owned store, which this year celebrated 
69 years of selling Lotto in Coolgardie. Patsy, as she is 
known, was born and raised in Coolgardie and went on 
to own the family store, called Moran’s Store. She has 
dedicated 55 years to selling Lotto, taking just one year 
off to travel when she turned 18. 

After Patsy’s 55 years of service, she handed over the reins 
and started her well-deserved retirement in April 2019. 

In 1950, Patsy’s father, John Moran, became a Lotterywest 
retailer. 

“We would sell Lotto tickets to local prospectors and people 
living in the bush who used to come through town to collect 
supplies,” she said.

“Back then we would sell those tickets from charity ticket 
books and it would be the highlight of their week to do their 
shopping in town and have enough money to buy a charity 
ticket.”

 On Australia Day 2008, Patsy sold her first winning Saturday 
Lotto Division One ticket worth $660,000. 

“That was an amazing day,” she said.

“It was won by a local couple, which was a big surprise, and 
no one knew who it was with the whole town trying to guess, 
and we still are.

“We love the fact that the people who we sold the business 
to love it as much as we did,” Patsy said.

We thank Patsy and her family for their contribution to 
Lotterywest and the WA community.

Image: Karen and daughter Jessica at Roleystone Newsagency 
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After Patsy’s 55 years of service, she 
handed over the reins and started her 

well-deserved retirement in April 2019. 
Patricia Deller, Moran’s Store Coolgardie
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For Your Dream State
Lotterywest launched a new advertising campaign ‘For 
Your Dream State’ which coincided with Western Australia’s 
annual WA Day celebrations.

The campaign emphasises Lottery players’s role in funding 
community projects and the positive results achieved by and 
for the community through Lotterywest grants. 

For the business, the campaign also delivers greater media 
buying and booking flexibility as it can be moved around 
to accommodate the unpredictable nature of Lotterywest 
jackpot gaming cycles. 

Along with a mass media buy in the month of June, we 
worked with grant partners, retailers and players to create 
relevant content from across the State - be it the Dinosaur 
Coast in Broome, the Margaret River Skate Park, or the 
Northside Highlanders Pipe Band in Joondalup. 

The aim of the campaign is to build greater awareness of the  
depth and breadth of Lotterywest grants – made possible by 
players and retailers - to encourage advocacy of our brand 
and drive long-term and sustainable revenue growth. 

Our brand

Images: Dream State campaign
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Big year of jackpots!
Significant jackpots of $60 million, $80 million and $100 million 
contributed to a very successful year of Lotto sales. 

The year started strongly in August 2018 as OZ Lotto and 
Powerball reached $70 million and $80 million respectively in 
the same week, the highest combined offering in Australian 
Lotto history.

To promote these events, we launched a new campaign ‘Big 
Week of Jackpots’ which bundled both draws together with 
a $50 Combo Pack. This allowed customers to buy multiple 
games in one purchase. More than 40,000 Combo Packs 
were sold, making it the best-selling pack since they were 
were launched in 2015.

Powerball reached a $100 million jackpot for the first time in 
its 22-year history in August 2018. There was not a Western 
Australian Division One prize winner, however across the 
jackpot run, Powerball generated $22 million of funds for the 
WA community.

In mid-January 2019, Powerball delivered another 
$100 million jackpot, with more than $23 million raised for 
the WA community. 

Lotterywest Christmas gift pack
Christmas is the peak time of year for Scratch’n’Win sales, 
with tickets used as gifts.

To promote scratchies as a convenient and fun gift, a 
‘Lotterywest Christmas gift pack’ campaign bundled 
Scratch’n’Win packs and Megadraw tickets. 

The campaign encouraged players to ‘make Christmas 
easy’ across in-store point of sale, radio, outdoor and digital 
advertising. 

This theme extended to the TV commercial, showing a 
couple ‘training for Christmas’ and the alternative of buying a 
Christmas gift pack to avoid the rush. 

The campaign was positively received by players, with the 
Scratch’n’Win portfolio exceeding its sales budgets over the 
Christmas period, helping contribute to a record-breaking 
year for scratchie sales. 

Combo packs sold

More than 

40,000 

Snapshot of the big jackpots

In August 2018 and January 2019

2 x $100m jackpots 

$45m back to 
WA community

Over the two $100m jackpot runs around

during the ‘Big Week of Jackpots’ campaign
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Workforce and organisational development 
Organisational development
Providing support to staff as Lotterywest worked through 
major internal business unit changes was a major focus of 
the year. This included the integration of Healthway and 
Lotterywest as well as the consolidation of lottery activities 
into one business unit. 

The integration with Healthway has involved the co-location 
of staff and the integration of corporate service functions and 
media and communications activities. All grant staff are now 
co-located and supported by a shared grants administrative 
coordination team. Staff positions were consolidated from 
contract to permanent positions where required. 

Another major change was the implementation of a 
restructure of the previous business units of Planning and 
Market Development with Lottery Operations Business. 
This was formalised in February 2019 and has now created 
a consolidated Lotteries Business Unit. The new Lotteries 

Business Unit comprises approximately 80 people and 
through four sections: Marketing and Sales, Operations 
and Support, Analysis and Monitoring and Development 
and Assurance. 

The role statements of some staff positions changed 
and areas were amalgamated with the aim of better 
integration, flexibility and agility to repond to opportunities 
and challenges as well as to improve customer services, 
particularly with our major stakeholders. The numbers of 
senior managers also decreased from eight to four as a result 
of the restructure. 

Lotterywest’s wellness program received silver status 
recognition from Healthier Workplaces WA in May 2019. 
The program offers a range of programs to support staff. 
These include skin checks, awareness-raising sessions 
through to subsidised exercise classes such as yoga, tennis 
and volleyball.

During the year the staff development programs included an 
aspiring leaders program for emerging leaders, leadership 
development series for established leaders through to 
customer service and software training to provide staff with 
support and opportunities for personal and professional 
growth. Twelve staff also accessed targeted professional 
coaching by qualified internal staff.

Participation in the inter-agency mentoring program was 
a continuing offering in 2018-19 with opportunities for staff 
to develop skills and broaden networks. Thirteen staff 
participated in the program from Lotterywest with over 
100 staff participating from nine other agencies across the 
sector. 

Under Lotterywest’s reconciliation work plan, Lotterywest 
initiated an Indigenous summer internship program in 
2018-19. This was in association with St Catherine’s College. 
This was successful for the participating intern and will 
continue into future years. 

Image: Lotterywest and Healthway staff at Subiaco train station
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Corporate social responsibility
Reconciliation work plan
Lotterywest’s reconciliation work plan is a core pillar of our 
commitment to build a positive culture which embraces 
working positively and acknowledging Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander peoples. Our plan includes:

 • Cultural awareness activities for all staff, with deeper 
cultural engagement training for those parts of the 
organisation most able to promote equality; and

 • Employment and career development opportunities for 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples such as our 
paid Aboriginal internship program run in partnership 
with St Catherine’s College. 

During the year, Lotterywest also entered into a contract with 
an Aboriginal owned and operated business to manage the 
car fleet cleaning services. 

A continuing focus of Lotterywest grants is to support 
Western Australian Aboriginal communities and 
organisations. In 2018-19 there were 31 applications to our 
Aboriginal Grant Program totalling $14,432,632.  

Responsible gambling
Lotterywest seeks to incorporate best practice in responsible 
gambling at every level. This commitment resulted in the 
decision during the year to prioritise the upgrade of our 
existing responsible gambling accreditation from the World 
Lottery Association (WLA) to the highest possible standard. 

A project team has commenced work to strengthen 
Lotterywest’s responsible gambling program to meet the 
standards required. This included engaging with experts, 
academics and service providers. Lotterywest’s application 
submission is due in May 2020.

Sustainability action plan
During the year Lotterywest launched a sustainability action 
plan to achieve its objective to meaningfully encourage and 
contribute to a sustainable thriving environment underpinned 
by the following goals:

 • Encourage creating a sustainable, collaborative and 
thriving environment 

 • Source ethical and environmentally responsible materials 
and service providers

 • Use energy efficiently and reduce our use of 
pollutants 

 • Minimise landfill by promoting waste management.

Actions taken to-date include:

 • Organisation-wide awareness campaign on how to 
maximise recycling

 • Facilities for non-council recyclables such as batteries, 
soft plastics and organic/compostable waste

 • Ensuring branded merchandise is multi-use and made 
from recyclable, recycled and ethically sourced materials 
wherever possible

 • Providing Corporate Smartriders for offsite business 
meetings 

 • Careful sourcing of stationery, cleaning products and 
catering to minimise environmental impacts including 
avoiding pollutants and less packaging 

In addition, Lotterywest continues to participate in and fund 
initiatives through the Problem Gambling Support Services 
Committee, which is the primary vehicle for providing 
assistance and counselling across WA.

 • A range of digital initiatives to reduce the need for printing 
such as digital signatures and workflows

 • Providing communal coffee ‘keep cups’ and reusable 
shopping bags for staff

 • Default printing in black and white.

Image: Delly Stokes, Lotterywest Senior Manager People and Culture Matthew Hammond 
and Tony Shaw from Indigenous Services Australia
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Grants

grants to 613 not-for-profit organisations 
and local government authorities

682
customers ‘satisfied’ or 

‘very satisfied’

96%$102,039,519
Total given in direct grants 

Active Healthy People
$1,878,277 No. of grants 18
 • Australian Council on Smoking and Health 
 • Nature Play WA 
 • Lake Grace Community Mens Shed 

Protected Sustainable Ecosystems
 $5,590,118 No. of grants 32
 • MOTTWA – Trillion Trees 
 • World Wide Fund for Nature Australia  
 • Maroo Wildlife Refuge Inc.  

Inclusive Thriving Community
$60,220,713 No. of grants 447
 • Community Trike for York 
 • Glass Jar  
 • Shire of Broome 

Connected Cultural Experiences
$15,422,849 No. of grants 173
 • Shinju Matsuri 
 • Shire of Carnarvon Lock Hospitals 
 • Ngaarda Media Aboriginal Corporation  

Smart Innovative Society 
$3,527,562 No. of grants 7
 • Aboriginal Health Council of WA  
 • RISE Network Inc 
 • Sideffect Australia Ltd 

Screenwest and  
Perth Festival 
$15,400,000 No. of grants 4

Total
$281.7m

Health
$143.7m

Sports
$18m

Arts
$18m

Statutory grants

Direct grants
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grant applications 
submitted requesting

823
$169,417,888

returned to the community in 
direct and statutory grants

$281.7m
of grants 

processed within

67%
70 working 

days

metropolitan information 
seminars with

4
178 attendees

regional locations 
visited by the 
grants team

70

613
different organisations and 

local government authorities

Worked with
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Community Investment Framework
During 2018-19 the Lotterywest Board approved a new 
framework for Lotterywest grant-making: the Community 
Investment Framework. This framework is shared by 
Healthway, which integrated with Lotterywest during 2018. 

The Framework offers an outcomes-based approach to 
grant-making and was developed following a detailed review 
of grant-making frameworks globally. 

The five priority areas, or pillars, aim to address the key 
factors which contribute to ‘Building a Better Western 
Australia, Together’, which is Lotterywest’s purpose. These 
include the outcome priority areas of Inclusive Thriving 
Community, Connected Cultural Experiences, Smart 
Innovative Society, Protected Sustainable Ecosystems and 
Active Healthy People. 

During the year, 36 meetings and workshops were held 
with community groups on the Framework, as well as 
sharing about the Framework in numerous meetings with 
grant customers to discuss their grant proposal. Work also 
commenced on updating the Lotterywest website to reflect 
the grants process changes resulting from the adoption of 
the framework. 

The integration of Lotterywest and Healthway has resulted 
in the commencement of reviews of each organisation’s 
grant making to coordinate and develop shared investment 
approaches. This will continue in 2019-20 as we continue 
to more effectively apply funding to achieve improved 
outcomes for the Western Australian community. 

WA Index of Wellbeing
In 2018, as a core component of the adoption of an increased 
outcomes-based approach to grant-making, Lotterywest 
commenced a project to develop a WA Index of Wellbeing. 

Using the Framework as the primary focus, the index aims to 
measure what makes a ‘good life’ in Western Australia. This 
will assist Lotterywest in its work to gauge areas of focus for 

grant-giving and how to measure progress in key indicators 
of the index over time. 

Rather than relying wholly on traditional socio-economic 
measures, the index takes into account aspects of health, 
environment, culture, arts and community engagement. 

During the year, the Nous Group was engaged to assist with 
the development of the index. The work was informed by 
an environmental scan, an analysis of work nationally and 
internationally in this area and indicator libraries to provide 
guidance on the most commonly recognised domains of 
wellbeing and available data sets to measure them. It was 
also informed by meetings with key stakeholders. 

In May 2019, 26 key indicators were identified, along with 
more than 50 grant level indicators. Emeritus Professor 
D’Arcy Holman AO, an expert in the measurement field, 
recently advised that:

“If we are performing well against each of these wellbeing 
indicators, then we should feel confident that Western 
Australia is a good place to live.”

Data collection and visualisation has been completed for a 
number of indicators and an external platform for the index is 
currently under development. 

What we learnt from a sample of grants
In order to understand the impact Lotterywest makes in 
the community, we took a sample of 105 Lotterywest grants 
acquitted in 2018-19 and asked some simple questions about 
what they achieved. 

This provided a snapshot of Lotterywest’s impact across 
the priority areas. From a sample of 105 grants we found 
Lotterywest invested $8.4 million into the community, this 
reached 3.3 million beneficiaries, involved 43,000 volunteers 
and touched every region in Western Australia.

Image: Community Investment Framework
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Grants team out on the road
The Lotterywest Grants and Community Development 
team travelled thousands of kilometres throughout 
Western Australia, from Wyndham to Esperance and out 
to the Ngaanyatjarra Lands, meeting grant customers to 
talk about grant ideas and see how previous grants are 
assisting the community. 

The team also hosted a number of sector conversations 
throughout the year to understand current opportunities and 
challenges and explore priorities for Lotterywest support. 

This approach enables the team to gain first-hand 
knowledge of Western Australian community priorities 
throughout the State and the ways that Lotterywest can 

best contribute. The visits and conversations also create 
awareness on Lotterywest’s processes and how to develop 
a strong proposal.

During the financial year, the Lotterywest Board and 
Minister approved 682 direct grants in excess of 
$102 million across the five priority areas of the  
Community Investment Framework.

The grants ranged from a $1,000 to support the volunteers of 
the Burekup Bush Fire Brigade to $6.5 million towards new 
jets for Western Australia’s Royal Flying Doctor Service.

Thirty-four new organisations were successful in receiving a 
Lotterywest grant during the 2018-19. This was 5 per cent of all 
grant organisations applying to Lotterywest during the year. 

Locations visited by the grants team

The largest investment this financial year was made towards 
creating an Inclusive Thriving Community with 447 grants 
provided, totalling more than $60.2 million. Connected 
Cultural Experiences were supported by approximately 
177 grants totalling $30.8 million, with the Protected 
Sustainable Ecosystems priority area receiving 19 grants 
totalling $1.8 million. Our investment this year in Active 
Healthy People totalled 19 grants and $1.8 million with the 
Smart Innovative Society priority area receiving seven grants 
totalling $3.6 million.

Image: Senior Grants Development Officer Linda on the road
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Direct grant stories

Plastic Free
Lotterywest is supporting the Plastic Free Foundation with a 
grant of more than $480,000 towards a three-year business 
strategy and impact measurement.

Lotterywest has also incorporated a number of recycling 
and plastic-free options in the workplace such as keep cups 
for all staff to use, and recently Plastic Free Foundation’s 
Director Rebecca Prince-Ruiz visited Lotterywest to talk 
about ways to reduce single-use plastic.

“The Plastic Free Foundation is incredibly grateful to 
Lotterywest for the funding they have provided which will 
enable us to create a cleaner WA,” Ms Prince-Ruiz said.

Sensorium Theatre
Sensorium Theatre is Australia’s only company making 
live shows specifically designed for children and young 
people with disability, including children on the autism 
spectrum and those with complex and multiple disabilities. 
The company’s goal is to improve the lives of children with 
disability through the power of the imagination.  Lotterywest 
has provided Sensorium Theatre with $25,400 towards 
strategic and business planning, which will help to enhance 
services and provide opportunities for children with complex 
disabilities.

The support from Lotterywest will also assist with staff 
training in alternative and augmentative communication 
and early literacy development for children with additional 
needs. The training will value-add to the existing skill sets of 
the company’s dedicated and talented creatives, enhancing 
their capacity achieve mutual understanding with audience 
members with complex communication needs.

St Catherine’s College onboard
The St Catherine’s College Dandjoo Darbalung program at 
Nedlands supports Aboriginal students with tertiary studies, 
whilst encouraging and nurturing cultural identity.

The program’s purpose is to help students who come from 
predominately regional and remote communities adapt to 
student life away from family and country and to build self-
confidence, networks and resilience. 

In December 2018, a $225,557 Lotterywest grant went 
towards this innovative program. The funds helping to build 
an inclusive outdoor community space and purchase a bus 
to assist with travel for students on the Dandjoo Darbalung 
program.

Image: Plastic Free Foundation’s Director Rebecca Prince-Ruiz & Lotterywest CEO Susan Hunt

Image: St Catherine’s College

Image: Co-Artistic Director Michelle Hovane in the role of 'Captain Zola' with audience member, 
photo: Daniel Grant
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Screenwest
Screenwest is Western Australia’s lead screen funding and 
development organisation, supporting film, television and 
digital production.

The past 12 months has seen incredible growth for the 
WA screen industry largely attributed to support given to 
Screenwest by the State Government, through Lotterywest.

Feature film and TV series production activity is booming in 
Western Australia. Based on the recent response to Mystery 
Road, The Series as well as The Heights (which premiered 
on ABC in February with a July mid-season relaunch) we’re 
seeing an appetite for these productions to have a second 
series. 

This is similar across the factual space, with productions 
like Outback Truckers and Outback Opal Hunters that have 
returned multiple series and for which the global appetite 
remains strong. 

At present Screenwest have a children’s TV series – Itch - 
and four feature films –H is for Happiness; Go Karts; Below 
and Rams - in post-production or waiting for premier 
screenings in the next few months along with a number 
of factual projects airing on free-to-air and pay-per-view 
channels.

Perth Festival
Around 455,000 Western Australians and visitors came 
together for the 67th annual Perth Festival.

More than 200,000 people walked through Kings Park 
for Boorna Waanginy: The Trees Speak, the free public 
celebration of Noongar culture and our special part of the 
world.

Other highlights among the 2019 Festival’s 312 international 
events included The Magic Flute, from Barrie Kosky’s 
Komische Oper Berlin, The Great Tamer, by Athens Olympic 
Opening Ceremony director Dimitris Papaioannou and 
seven Made in WA world premieres commissioned by Perth 
Festival.

Over half the 1,407 festival artists hailed from WA, standing 
shoulder to shoulder in creative exchange with their 
counterparts from around the world. Audiences warmly 
embraced the new local works – particularly the sell-out hits 
Le Nor and Sunset.

At the heart of Perth Festival is the most comprehensive arts 
sector development and creative learning program of any 
festival in Australia.

More than 6,000 local artists, technicians and arts lovers 
participated in the Festival Connect series of workshops, 
masterclasses and artist talks, while 4,000 school students 
were involved as ‘makers’ in the Festival program through a 
series of creative learning initiatives.

On behalf of the Perth Festival team and the entire 
community, I offer my sincere appreciation to 
Lotterywest for your essential and ongoing support 
for Perth Festival as our Principal Partner. It is a 
powerful investment in our community that promotes 
a flourishing culture and makes Western Australia a 
dynamic, internationally focused place in which to live, 
work and visit.

Wendy Martin 
Artistic Director 2015-19

Image: Perth fest: The Nature of Why, Photo: Toni WilkinsonImage: Mystery Road set, photo: Lisa Tomasetti
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Boost for Busselton Jetty
Visitors to Busselton Jetty are able to explore the structure 
of the jetty and how its piles – the longest in the southern 
hemisphere – create artificial reefs, allowing jetty volunteers 
to share their knowledge on environmental threats.

Enthusiasts can also practice their whale dialect in the whale 
acoustic booth, which will share bio-acoustics research on 
killer and orca whales.

The grant also benefits more than 100 volunteers, including 
divers and researchers studying the impact of climate 
change and growth rates on fish habitat protection.

A $200,000 Lotterywest grant has helped to make this 
possible.

Playtime for Lady Lawley
Lotterywest was proud to support Lady Lawley Cottage with 
a $106,700 grant towards new playground equipment.

More than 120 children with a wide range of disabilities 
currently use the services of Lady Lawley.

Children are supported by skilled, experienced and 
dedicated support workers and nurses who aim to help 
every child achieve their individual goals.

“This Lotterywest grant will allow Lady Lawley Cottage to 
provide a contemporary playground that meets the needs 
of all children and young people accessing respite services,” 
Senior Manager, Lady Lawley Cottage Aoife Field said.

Conservation boost
The acacia tree is a symbol of healing. This is from where 
the Budadee Aboriginal Corporation takes its name and 
which represents its key goal; to look after country and 
culture by providing training and employment opportunities 
for the communities of Yandeyarra, Marble Bar, Nullagine 
and Port Hedland.

Since 2016, the organisation has worked with communities 
to promote the protection of the Tharra and Karnparnmana 
Protected Area, also known as the Woodstock-Abydos.

A $104,714 Lotterywest grant will go towards a new 4WD 
vehicle and camper trailer to help rangers reach difficult areas 
to protect, conserve and monitor unique flora and fauna.

Support for WA veterans and families
The State Government's $4.6 million grant to the Returned & 
Services League of WA, through Lotterywest, will go towards 
the construction and fit-out of a dedicated Veterans' Central, 
which will house a range of services for veterans and their 
families in one place, making it easier for veterans and their 
families to engage in ex-service support when they visit.

ANZAC House will include office space for RSLWA staff and 
office holders, a club area for members, a function room and 
a café along with the new Veterans' Central.

Image: Budadee Aboriginal corporation, photo: Terra Rosa

Image: Busselton Jetty
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Royal Flying Doctor Service 
Lotterywest’s largest direct grant for the 2018-19 financial 
year went towards buying new jets for the Royal Flying 
Doctor Service.

The $6.5 million grant has helped support the new 
LifeFlight PC-24 jet, one of the first purpose-built 
aeromedical jets in the world.

New jets will enhance delivery of critical healthcare services 
in regional WA.

Galloping to assistance
Riding for the Disabled in Carine has received a $200,000 
Lotterywest grant towards an arena cover which will enable 
access for its riders in rain, hail or shine.

Horse riding helps people with disabilities by strengthening 
muscles and improving balance, coordination, respiration, 
circulation and sensory integration and providing a social 
opportunity and chance to bond with these gentle animals.

Wildlife win
Lotterywest is supporting Mandurah Wildlife rescue with a 
$58,814 grant towards a 4WD vehicle and trailer supporting 
wildlife conservation and educational activities. 

The Dawesville based organisation hopes education will 
ease the number of animals in need of rescue.

“This Lotterywest grant has been significant for us as it 
provides great publicity along with transportation to run 
projects at schools and local events,” said Kim Low, Chair of 
the Board, Mandurah Wildlife Rescue.

“We are trying to help people understand the basics of 
wildlife and driving around them, and their behaviour can 
have a literal impact on wildlife.”

All power to animal rescue
Possum Valley Animal Sanctuary in Mount Helena currently 
cares for about 160 predominantly native and farm animals, 
rehabilitating them back into the wild, or re-homing where 
possible.

A $25,664 Lotterywest grant has supported a new generator 
and a universal ablution block.

“We rely heavily on power for all our water handling, drinking 
troughs and fire suppression systems because we don’t 
have a mains supply,” said Possum Valley Animal Sanctuary 
Founder Mark Hayman.

“The backup generator has given us confidence now that if 
there’s an outage or fire we will be able to continue to care 
for our animals and keep them safe.”

Image: Royal Flying Doctor Service

Image: Tawny frog mouth at Mandurah Wildlife Rescue

Image: Chris Rafferty and Mark Hayman from Possum Valley



Lotterywest Annual Report 2018-1942

Lotterywest has distributed more than 
$179.6 million in statutory grants to health,  
culture and the arts, and sport and recreation 
this financial year. 

The Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (the Act) specifies how 
net gaming revenue, that is ticket subscription less prize 
payment, is to be distributed. Under the Act, 40 per cent 
is to be distributed to the State Pool Account on behalf of 
WA Health. A further 5 per cent is specified for the Sports 
Lotteries Account and 5 per cent goes to the Arts Lotteries 
Account. The respective Minister for each of these portfolios 
is responsible for the subsequent distribution of these funds. 

As a result of strong sales in 2018-19, there has been a 
15 per cent increase on the amount provided to Health, 
Sport and the Arts when compared to the previous year.  
This is an additional total of $23.8 million.

Culture and arts
The Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural 
Industries supports more than 40 organisations to present 
high-quality arts and cultural experiences for the people of 
Western Australia. 

The supported organisations are diverse, from across music, 
drama, visual arts and performance sectors. A focus is 
creative content that tells local stories reflecting Western 
Australia’s identity. 

An example is Spare Parts Puppet Theatre’s spectacular 
production of String Symphony, which included work 
by Western Australian designer and puppet maker Leon 
Hendroff. This giant puppet was hand-woven, illuminated, 
interactive and also operated by audience members. Over 
the last 12 months, this production toured to nine festivals 
across Australia including the Commonwealth Games, 
Geraldton’s Wind on Water Festival, Stretch Arts Festival in 
Mandurah and the World on a String Festival in Melbourne.

Statutory grants 

Health
$143.7m 

$19m more than 
the prior year

Sports
$18m

$2.4m more than 
the prior year

Arts
$18m 

$2.4m more than 
the prior year

$179.6m
Statutory grants

Health and hospitals 
The WA health system services the community in 
metropolitan, regional and remote areas of the state in 
hundreds of locations spanning an area of 2.5 million square 
kilometres.

In the past 12 months WA Health has: 

 • received 1,084,798 emergency department visits

 • performed 87,859 elective surgeries 

 • delivered 24,587 babies.

Lotterywest funding for health projects across the State 
has helped us deliver safe and high-quality services to 
more people and places in Western Australia.

Dr David Russell-Weisz 
Director General Department of Health
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Lotterywest funding plays a vital role in deepening 
engagement and participation in sport and recreation, 
and culture and the arts across the State. These 
experiences are essential to social wellbeing, 
enhancing the cultural and economic vitality of our 
communities.

Duncan Ord OAM 
Director General of the Department of Local Government, 
Sport and Cultural Industries

Sport and recreation
In 2018-19, almost $18 million in Sports Lotteries funding was 
provided to the Department of Local Government, Sport 
and Cultural Industries to support the delivery of sport and 
recreation programs and organisations across the State. 

Funding of $7.2 million went to 87 state sporting associations, 
supporting over 830,000 members through 4,500 local 
sporting clubs. 

Significant funding went towards creating active and 
connected regional communities, such as through the 
2019 North West Netball Championships in the Pilbara and 
Kimberley and the annual Mandurah Australia Day Swim. 
Elite Western Australian athletes were also supported to 
achieve their best through the WA Institute of Sport.

Image: Naidoc Week Basketball Carnival at the Jack Bendat Centre, Photo: Gareth Andersen
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Disclosures and legal compliances
Lotterywest key performance indicators
Certification of Performance Indicators

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, 
are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Lotteries Commission’s 
performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Lotteries Commission for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2019.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Outcome statement
Lotteries are conducted with the net proceeds returned to the community of Western Australia.

Services
1. Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia.

2.  The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia.

Effectiveness Indicators Actual 
2018-19

Budget 
2018-19

Actual 
2017-18

Actual 
2016-17

Actual 
2015-16

1.  Sales per adult $473.86 $418.24 $414.08 $402.39 $424.88

2.  Total allocation to beneficiaries 
per capita

$107.43 $98.36 $99.83 $102.45 $106.98

3.  Total allocation to beneficiaries 
as a % of sales

28.59% 29.70% 30.4% 32.1% 31.6%

Efficiency Indicators Actual 
2018-19

Budget 
2018-19

Actual 
2017-18

Actual 
2016-17

Actual 
2015-16

4.  Lottery operations expenses as a  
% of sales

5.55% 7.80% 7.20% 7.40% 5.50%

5.  Grants operations expenses as a % 
of direct grants approved

14.27% 12.20% 11.90% 10.70% 13.50%

Base Data  
(million)

Actual 
2018-19

Budget 
2018-19

Actual 
2017-18

Actual 
2016-17

Actual 
2015-16

a. Total population 2.6218 2.6393 2.6012 2.5897 2.6305

b. Adult population 2.0792 2.0886 2.0638 2.0562 2.0935

c. Total sales $985.25 $873.54 $854.56 $827.39 $889.49

d.  Total allocated to beneficiaries* $281.65 $259.60 $259.67 $265.32 $281.41

e.  Total approved direct grants* $102.04 $100.00 $103.87 $114.15 $118.84

f.  Lottery operations expenses $54.66 $68.00 $61.73 $61.16 $49.30

g.  Grants operations expenses  $14.56 $12.25 $12.38 $12.25 $16.10

Note: * No adjustment for write back of forfeited grants.

Peter Klinken AC 
Chair 
Accountable Authority 
15 August 2019

Stephen Carre 
Commissioner 
Accountable Authority 
15 August 2019
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Notes to the Key Performance 
Indicator tables
Effectiveness indicators
1. This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in entering the players’ market that is 

considered to be the adult population in Western Australia. The variance in sales per adult 
to budget and previous years is a result of sales exceeding budget expectations due to 
changes made in 2018 to the Powerball game and higher than expected jackpot levels for 
the two jackpotting games in OZ lotto and Powerball. 

  Note: Adult population refers to the number of Western Australians of 16 years and over who are permitted by the 
Lotteries Commission Act (1990) to purchase lottery products.

2. This measure relates to Lotterywest’s grant funding function which is to provide funds and 
support to the community of Western Australia. The favourable result this year compared 
to budget and previous years is a consequence of higher statutory grant allocations as a 
direct result of higher sales.  

3. This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in converting sales revenue to 
community grants. Although total grants payable to beneficiaries increased, this year’s 
result is below that budgeted and previous years mainly due to the substantial increase in 
sales whilst maintaining the direct grant program at a sustainable level. 

Efficiency indicators
4. This indicator shows the efficiency of Lotterywest in generating its lottery sales revenue. It 

excludes Grant Operations expenses. The combination of a reduction in lottery operations 
expenses, namely retailer shopfit incentives, and substantially higher sales had a 
significant positive impact on this indicator in comparison to budget and the prior year.    

  Note: reclassification of accounting allocation between service types occurred in 2016-17. This new classification 
applies to future years, however it has not been applied retrospectively to prior years. 

5.  This measure shows the ratio of expenditure associated with the grants distribution to 
not for profit and benevolent organisations. The unfavourable result is a reflection of 
minor increases in Lotterywest’s grants operations expenses and the inclusion of costs 
to service Healthway functions for the period 1 January to 30 June 2019 under a new 
Service Level Arrangement.

Base data
(a) and (b) Lotterywest uses population figures sourced from the Australian Bureau of 

Statistics (ABS) in calculating its performance indicators. 

The total population of Western Australia is used for Community Grants indicators as all 
Western Australians benefit from the community funding grants program.  

The adult population figures are used for Lottery Product indicators as only adults (aged 
16 years and over) are permitted to purchase lottery products in Western Australia.

Beneficiaries refer to the allocation prescribed in the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to 
the Hospital Fund, the Sports Account, the Arts Account and to eligible organisations of 
“approved purposes”.

(c)  This shows Lotterywest’s total annual gross sales for the financial year 2018-19. It 
excludes Other Income derived by Lotterywest.

(d) This item shows the total of all statutory and direct grants allocated for 2018-19, including 
forfeited amounts reallocated from prior years. 

(e) This item shows the total direct grants allocated for 2018-19, including forfeited amounts 
reallocated from prior years. For the purpose of these Indicators, the Goods and Services 
Tax has been excluded from expense calculations.

(f ) Lottery operating expenses of $54.7 million reflect all operational costs associated with 
selling of lottery products (excluding cost of goods sold and GST).

(g) Grants operations expenses of $14.6 million reflect all operating costs undertaking the 
grant making administration and distribution function, including costs associated with 
servicing Healthway (excluding grant amounts).
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Ministerial Directives
A potential conflict of interest exists for members of the 
Lotteries Commission Board who are also appointed to 
the Board of the Western Australian Health Promotion 
Foundation. On 18 December 2018, the Minister responsible 
for the Lotteries Commission, the Premier, issued the 
following written direction to the Lotteries Commission 
under section 7(1) of the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (WA), 
in relation to the treatment of those potential conflicts of 
interest:

“The Premier directs the Lotteries Commission under 
section 7(1) of the Lotteries Commission Act:

(a)  To continue to consider matters and make decisions 
relating to the Lotteries Commission’s interaction and 
dealings with the Western Australian Health Promotion 
Foundation recognising the existence of the conflict 
of interest arising as a result of some members of the 
Lotteries Commission Board also being members of the 
Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation; and

(b) That members of the Lotteries Commission Board (who 
are also members of the Western Australian Health 
Promotion Foundation Board) may take part in the 
consideration and voting on all matters involving an 
interaction with the Western Australian Health Promotion 
Foundation provided that they:

i. Act with loyalty and in good faith;

ii. Act honestly;

iii. Exercise reasonable care and diligence;

iv. Do not make improper use of information;

v. Do not make improper use of their position; and

vi. Act in the best interests of the Lotteries 
Commission when considering and voting on 
behalf of the Lotteries Commission, taking into 
consideration the interests of the Western Australian 
government as a whole.”

Governance 
disclosures
Enabling legislation
The Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest) operates 
under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (the Act) and its 
subsidiary legislation. Lotterywest’s functions under the Act 
are to conduct lotteries and to perform any other function 
vested by the Act (primarily concerning the assessment, 
distribution and administration of grants).

Our subsidiary legislation includes:

 • Lotteries Commission Regulations 1991

 • Lotteries Commission (Authorised Lotteries) Rules 2016

 • Lotteries Commission (Designated Authorities) 
Regulations 1998

 • Lotteries Commission (Instant Lottery) Rules 1996

 • Lotteries Commission (Policy Instruments) Regulations 
2010

Other key legislation impacting on Lotterywest’s activities 
include:
 • A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 

(Cwth)
 • Associations Incorporation Act 2015
 • Auditor General Act 2006
 • Betting Control Act 1954
 • Betting Control Regulations 1978
 • Charitable Trusts Act 1962
 • Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Cwth)
 • Competition Policy Reform (Western Australia) Act 1996
 • Copyright Act 1968 (Cwth)
 • Corporations Act 2001 (Cwth)
 • Corruption, Crime and Misconduct Act 2003
 • Disability Services Act 1993
 • Electronic Transactions Act 1999 (Cwth)
 • Electronic Transactions Act 2011

 • Equal Opportunity Act 1984
 • Financial Management Act 2006
 • Financial Transaction Reports Act 1995
 • Financial Transaction Reports Act 1988 (Cth)
 • Freedom of Information Act 1992
 • Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 (Cwth)
 • Fringe Benefits Tax Assessment Act 1986 (Cwth)
 • Gaming and Betting (Contracts and Securities) Act 1985
 • Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987
 • Gaming and Wagering Commission Regulations 1988
 • Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries 

Levy) Act 2000
 • Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries 

Levy) Regulations 2000
 • Industrial Relations Act 1979
 • Interactive Gambling Act 2001 (Cwth)
 • Interactive Gambling Regulations 2001 (Cwth)
 • Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
 • Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
 • Occupational Safety and Health Regulations 1996
 • Patents Act 1990 (Cwth)
 • Privacy Act 1988 (Cwth)
 • Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
 • Public Sector Management Act 1994
 • Retail Trading Hours Act 1987
 • Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
 • Spam Act 2003 (Cwth)
 • State Records Act 2000
 • State Supply Commission Act 1991
 • State Superannuation Act 2000
 • Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996
 • Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act 1992 (Cwth)
 • Superannuation Act 2005 (Cwth)
 • Trade Marks Act 1995 (Cwth)
 • Unclaimed Money Act 1990
 • Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation Act 2016 
 • Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
 • Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Cwth)
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Board and Committee remuneration
Remuneration of the Accountable Authority for Lotterywest for the 2018-19 year is outlined below:

Name Salary Super Benefit Period of Membership Total

Chair Peter Klinken 43,133 4,095 9 months 47,208

Chair Heather Zampatti 20,550 1,952 3 months 22,502

Member Miriam Borthwick 27,537 8,473 12 months 36,010

Member Stephen Carre 31,237 2,967 12 months 34,204

Member Andrea Hall 2,603 247 1 month 2,850

Member Kingsley Dixon 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Elizabeth McLellan 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Jim McGinty 34,883 3,313 12 months 38,196

Total remuneration paid $222,395 $26,981 $249,376

Conflict of interest
The Public Sector Commission’s Code of Conduct and the 
Lotterywest Code of Conduct and Policies apply to the 
management of conflicts of interest held by Commissioners 
or staff. 

Lotterywest provides grants to a broad range of not-for-profit 
beneficiaries. Commissioners disclose standing declarations 
in respect of any interests they may hold which they perceive 
may result in a conflict arising. In matters which may extend 
beyond mere association, Commissioners and officers 
are required to disclose the full extent of their interest and 
abstain from voting or participating in the decision making 
process subject to any Ministerial directive. 

Related party transactions
The Accounting Standards apply to the disclosure of related 
party transactions in the financial statements. 

At the date of this report, no senior officers or entities in 
which senior officers have substantial interest, had any 
interests in existing or proposed contracts with Lotterywest 
other than normal contracts of employment for services.

Directors and officers liability insurance
Lotterywest has in place a Directors and Officers Liability 
Insurance policy which indemnifies Board members and 
directors (as defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations 
(Liability of Directors) Act 1996) against liability under Section 
13 and 14 of that Act. The premium paid in 2018-19 was 
$14,437.50.
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Other legal requirements 
Advertising, direct mail, market research and media 
expenditure (including GST) incurred by Lotterywest for the 
2018-19 year was:

(a) Advertising:

$ 
Marketforce 4,201,599
Total 4,201,599

(b) Direct mail:

$ 

Total -

(c) Market research:

$
Metrix Consulting  286,025
Golden Casket  36,620
Faster Horses  8,800
Curtin University  26,800
Thinkfield  11,885
Kantar  20,900
Neurolytics  15,510
Marketforce  24,000
Total 430,540

(d) Media advertising:

$ 
Carat 4,571,847
Longtail 376,642
OMD 504,499
Initiative  7,829,705
Total 13,282,694

Recordkeeping plan and management
Lotterywest has ensured the smooth transition to its new 
Electronic Document and Records Management System, 
implemented in May 2018, through a sustained and 
comprehensive training and support program. 

Lotterywest’s record-keeping governance framework is 
up-to-date and accessible to all staff through the corporate 
intranet including the new five year functional Retention 
and Disposal Authority (approved December 2018), 
the Recordkeeping Plan and Records and Information 
Management Policy.

Lotterywest requires all staff to complete Recordkeeping 
Awareness Training every three years. The KPI of 80 per cent 
was met in 2018-19.

Freedom of Information
Action taken in respect of Freedom of Information 
applications received during the year was:

2017-18 2018-19
FOI applications 
received

2 3

FOI applications 
finalised

2 2

Average number 
of days to finalise

43 26

FOI decisions 
reconsidered 
by the FOI 
Commissioner

- -

Public Interest disclosures
During the year Lotterywest did not receive any Public 
Interest Disclosures within the meaning of the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 2003.
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan
Lotterywest’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (2017-21) 
aims to provide people with a disability the same opportunity 
as other people to access our facilities, information, products, 
services and employment opportunities, contribute to public 
consultation and make complaints. 

The plan has a strong emphasis on improving the 
accessibility of our digital product and service offerings and 
we work toward meeting the Web Content Accessibility 
Guidelines 2.0, wherever possible. 

Our initiatives for the period include:

 • IT development team trained in using assistive 
technologies and content creators trained in developing 
accessible digital content.

 • All new digital promotion and web design was built to 
accessibility best practice standards.

 • We are continuing to apply improvements to existing 
digital channels resulting from an external review of 
compliance to accessibility guidelines.

 • Lotterywest’s communications & tone of voice guidelines 
updated to provide comprehensive guidance on 
accessibility considerations and appropriate language for 
communications. 

 • An Accessibility Statement was published on the 
Corporate website.

 • Our feedback and complaints page now provides 
Teletypewriter (TTY) and National Translating and 
Interpreting Service (TIS) contact options.

 • Improved recruitment processes to attract and support 
applicants with a disability.

The plan is available on Lotterywest’s website.

Compliance with Public Sector Standards 
and Ethical Codes
Lotterywest, as a public sector agency, is required to 
comply with Public Sector Standards in Human Resource 
Management (HRM) and the Public Sector Code of Ethics. 

Action taken by Lotterywest to ensure compliance includes:

 • Information about HRM Standards and the 
Commissioners Instructions is made available to all 
employees

 • Human resource practises, policies and processes are 
regularly reviewed to ensure compliance with HRM 
Standards and the Commissioners Instructions 

There were no breaches of Standards identified in 2018-19. 

Public Sector code of ethics and Lotterywest 
code of conduct
Lotterywest’s Code of Conduct and the Public Sector Code 
of Ethics are provided to all new staff and are available on 
Lotterywest’s intranet. 

Lotterywest contracts of employment reference the 
Lotterywest Code of Conduct, confidentiality agreements 
and require National Police Clearances.

Formal Accountable and Ethical Decision Making training is 
provided to all staff and refresher training provided every two 
years. 

The Lotterywest Code of Conduct is reviewed on a yearly 
basis or as required.
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Occupational safety, 
health and injury 
management 
In accordance with the requirements of the Occupational 
Safety and Health Act 1984, Workers Compensation 
and Injury Management Act 1981 and Public Sector 
Commissioner’s Circular.

Commitment to occupational safety, health 
and injury management
The health and wellbeing of staff, contractors and the public 
is of paramount concern to Lotterywest. Fortunately, in 
2018-19 no significant lost time injury incidents occurred. 

Lotterywest maintains an OSH committee, appropriate OSH 
policies and an injury management system to support this 
commitment to safety and wellbeing. 

Lotterywest’s OSH Committee is the formal mechanism for 
consultation and reporting between management and staff. 
The OSH Committee met twice during the year.

Lotterywest complies with all injury management 
requirements. In 2018-19 there were no new incidents 
requiring return to work plans.

An assessment of Lotterywest’s OSH management system 
using a recognised assessment tool was not undertaken in 
2018-19. Lotterywest’s Strategic Workforce Plan is due for 
review in 2019-20 and an assessment will be scheduled in 
conjunction with this review. As a result, there are currently 
no agreed actions to be completed.

Occupational safety, health and injury 
management performance results

Measure Actual Results Target

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Number of fatalities 0 0 0 0

Number of lost time 
injury and disease 
incidence

3 0 0
0 or 10% 
reduction

Number of severe 
claims

0 0 0 0

Lost time injury and 
disease incident 
rate 

1 0 0
0 or 10% 
reduction

Lost time injury and 
severity rate

0 0 0
0 or 10% 
reduction

% injured workers 
return within 13 
weeks

100% N/a N/a >80%

% injured workers 
return within 26 
weeks

N/a N/a N/a >80%

% managers 
undertaking OSH 
training within 3 
years

25% 71% 35% >80%

Unauthorised use of credit cards
Lotterywest issues corporate credit cards to staff where 
warranted. 

During the year five employees inadvertently used the 
corporate credit card for personal transactions. The matter 
was not referred for any disciplinary action as the Chief 
Finance Officer noted prompt advice and settlement of the 
personal use amount and that the nature of the expenditure 
was immaterial, inadvertent and characteristic of an honest 
mistake. Amounts incurred and duration of repayment is 
outlined below:

2017-18 2018-19

Aggregate amount of personal use 
expenditure

$185 $257

Aggregate amount settled within 
five working days

$78 $257

Aggregate amount settled after five 
working days

$107 $0

Aggregate amount outstanding at 
balance date

$0 $0
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Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Lotterywest Audit and Risk Management Committee 
(ARMC) assists the Lotterywest Board in fulfilling its 
corporate governance and oversight responsibility in 
relation to financial reports, internal controls and assurance 
structures, risk management and the internal and external 
audit processes. Consulting internal audit services continued 
to be provided primarily by KPMG.

Membership of the ARMC comprises:

Committee Chair – Commissioner Stephen Carre 

Committee Chair – Commissioner Andrea Hall (until July 
2018)

Committee Member – Commissioner Professor Peter Klinken 
(from Oct 2018)

Committee Member – Commissioner Jim McGinty (from Oct 
2018) 

Committee Member – Commissioner Heather Zampatti (until 
July 2018) 

Committee Member – Commissioner Miriam Borthwick 
(from Oct 2018 until Nov 2018)

During 2018-19 the ARMC met on four occasions.

Risk management
The Lotterywest Risk Management Framework defines 
Lotterywest’s ‘Risk Appetite’ and outlines the objective for 
Lotterywest to have a ‘Risk Aware’ culture consistent with the 
risk appetite. The objectives of the framework are to:

 • Provide a structured and systematic approach to the 
process of managing risk within Lotterywest;

 • Provide confidence that risks are being effectively 
managed throughout the organisation;

 • Ensure clear accountabilities for risk management;

 • Define the risk context and risk appetite of Lotterywest;

 • Provide the tools to identify the inherent, residual and 
acceptable risk levels, assessing the effectiveness of their 
control measures and what actions are to be taken;

 • Encourage a ‘risk aware’ culture that ensures responsible 
and informed risk-taking while ensuring appropriate 
measures are taken to protect the organisation and 
maintain stakeholder confidence; and

 • Ensure that risk management is a living and dynamic 
process, appropriately embedded in business functions 
and operations.

Substantive equality
Lotterywest’s Strategic Workforce Plan includes goals, 
targets and initiatives to address equity and diversity groups 
across Lotterywest in accordance with the Equal Opportunity 
Act 1984. During the 2018-19 year, Lotterywest achieved an 
Equity Index for women of 86.3 per cent which is higher than 
the WA Public Sector average of 74.4 per cent.

Major capital projects
Capital expenditure during 2018-19 was relatively minor 
totalling $0.518m.

Expenditure for major capital projects undertaken was:

 $M

Operating system 0.222
Security upgrade 0.177

Employees
The number of employees at Lotterywest at 30 June 2019, 
including the sixteen employees that transferred from 
Healthway in January 2019, was:

 2017-18 2018-19

Full time permanent 152 183
Full time contract 52 36
Part time 14 25
Secondment 2 0
Total 220 244
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Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Certification of Financial Statements for the year  
ended 30 June 2019

The accompanying financial statements of the Lotteries 
Commission have been prepared in compliance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from 
proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 
transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 and 
the financial position as at 30 June 2019.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any 
circumstances which would render the particulars included 
in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Jeremy Hubble  
Chief Finance Officer 
15 August 2019

Peter Klinken AC 
Chair 
Accountable Authority 
15 August 2019

Stephen Carre 
Commissioner 
Accountable Authority 
15 August 2019
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Lotterywest has pleasure in presenting its audited general purpose financial statements for the financial reporting period ended 30 June 2019 which provides users with the information about 
Lotterywest’s stewardship of resources entrusted to it. The financial information is presented in the following structure:
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Note
2019 
$000

2018 
$000

INCOME
Revenue

Sale of lottery products 3.1 985,251 854,564 
Interest revenue 3.2 9,784 8,095 
Other revenue 3.3 14,224 9,650 

Total revenue 1,009,259 872,309 
Gains 3.4 596 1,612
Total income 1,009,855 873,921 

EXPENSES
Cost of lottery sales 3.1 668,773 582,512 
Lotteries operations 4.1 54,659 61,733 
Grants and community development operations 4.1 14,558 12,385 
Distribution to grant beneficiaries 4.2 279,607 255,785 

Total expenses 1,017,597 912,415 
Profit/(loss) before grants from State Government (7,742) (38,494)
Grants from State Government 3.5 39,217 33,622 
Profit/(loss) for the period 31,475 (4,872)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified to profit and loss in this or subsequent period

Changes in asset revaluation 9.1 (374) (973)
Total other comprehensive income (374) (973)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period 31,101 (5,845)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. See also Note 2 “Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service”.

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2019

Note
2019 
$000

2018 
$000

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6.1 26,374 17,980 
Inventories 5.2.1 1,744 1,553 
Receivables 5.2.2 20,028 11,747 
Financial assets at amortised cost 6.2 181,789 79,000 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 5.1.1 5,100  - 
Prepayments 615 933 

Total Current Assets 235,650 111,213 
Non-Current Assets

Financial assets at amortised cost 6.2 103,593 155,938 
Property, plant and equipment 5.1.2 19,034 27,845 
Intangibles 5.1.3 8,078 12,386 

Total Non-Current Assets 130,705 196,169 
TOTAL ASSETS 366,355 307,382 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Payables 7.1 183,205 174,069 
Provisions 7.2 32,325 26,242 
Other liabilities 7.3 6,357 5,291

Total Current Liabilities 221,887 205,602
Non-Current Liabilities

Payables 7.1 41,180 29,470 
Provisions 7.2 1,708 1,429 
Other liabilities 7.3 3,286 3,688

Total Non-Current Liabilities 46,174 34,587
TOTAL LIABILITIES 268,061 240,189 
NET ASSETS 98,294 67,193 
EQUITY

Asset revaluation reserve 9.1 5,098 5,472 
Retained earnings 9.1 93,196 61,721 

TOTAL EQUITY 98,294 67,193 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Note
Asset  

Revaluation 
$000

Retained  
Earnings 

$000

Total  
Equity 

$000

Balance at 1 July 2017 6,445 66,593 73,038
Profit/(loss) for the period 9.1  - (4,872) (4,872)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 9.1 (973)  - (973)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period (973) (4,872) (5,845)

Balance at 30 June 2018 5,472 61,721 67,193 

Balance at 1 July 2018 5,472 61,721 67,193 
Profit/(loss) for the period 9.1  - 31,475 31,475
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 9.1 (374)  - (374)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period (374) 31,475 (31,101)

Balance at 30 June 2019 5,098 93,196 98,294

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Sale of lottery products 986,864 854,973 
Interest received 9,382 7,813 
GST receipts on sales 622 506 
Service Level Arrangement - Healthway 685 -
Receipts from litigation settlement 5 - 

Payments
Prizes and retailers’ commissions (588,252) (531,956)
Employee benefits (25,788) (29,640)
Supplies and services (36,783) (39,005)
Direct grants (109,288) (94,105)
GST payments on purchases (21,642) (19,930)
GST payments to taxation authority (18,046) (13,651)

Net cash provided by operating activities 6.1.2 197,759 135,005 

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts

Proceeds from sales of assets held for sale - 620 
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 6 3 

Payments  
Purchase of non-current assets (519) (5,523)
Purchase of investments (50,444) (11,749)

Net cash from investing activities (50,957) (16,649)

Cash flows (to)/from State Government
GST reimbursements 35,580 33,538 
Statutory payments to beneficiaries (173,988) (155,713)

Net cash (provided to) State Government (138,408) (122,175)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,394 (3,819)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 17,980 21,799 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 6.1.1 26,374 17,980 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

1. Basis of preparation
Lotterywest is a Statutory Authority and a not-for-profit reporting entity for the purposes  
of Australian Accounting Standards. The nature of operations and principal activities are  
described in the Agency Performance which does not form part of these financial statements.

These annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Accountable Authority  
of Lotterywest on 15 August 2019.

Statement of compliance
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:

1. The Financial Management Act 2006 (FMA)

2. The Treasurer’s Instructions (the Instructions or TI)

3. Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) including applicable interpretations

4.  Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable for not-for-profit entities  
have been applied.

The FMA and the Instructions take precedence over AAS. Several AAS are modified by the 
Instructions to vary application, disclosure format and wording. Where modification is required 
and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of 
that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

Basis of preparation
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars applying the accrual  
basis of accounting and using the historical cost convention. Certain balances will  
apply a different measurement basis (such as the fair value basis). Where this is the  
case the different measurement basis is disclosed in the associated note. All values  
are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

Judgements and estimates

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about financial  
information being presented. The significant judgements and estimates made in the  
preparation of these financial statements are disclosed in the notes where amounts  
affected by those judgements and/or estimates are disclosed. Estimates and associated  
assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience  
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2. Lotterywest outputs
How Lotterywest operates
This section includes information regarding the nature of Lotterywest’s income and how this  
income is utilised to achieve its objectives.

Schedule of income and expenses by service

Service 1 
Sale of lottery  

products

 Service 2 
Grants and other 

distributions 
Total

2019
$000

2018
$000

2019
$000

2018
$000

2019
$000

2018
$000

INCOME
Sales 985,251 854,564 - - 985,251 854,564 
Interest income 9,784 8,095 - - 9,784 8,095 
Other revenue 13,108 9,650 1,116* - 14,224 9,650 
Gains 596 1,612 - - 596 1,612 
Total income 1,008,739 873,921 1,116 - 1,009,855 873,921 

EXPENSES
Cost of sales 668,773 582,512 - - 668,773 582,512 
Lotteries operations 54,659 61,733 - - 54,659 61,733 
Grants and community  
development operations

 -  - 14,558 12,385 14,558 12,385 

Total expenses excluding  
returns to beneficiaries

723,432 644,245 14,558 12,385 737,990 656,630 

Profit/(loss) before  
returns to beneficiaries

285,307  229,676 (13,442) (12,385) 271,865 217,291 

Grants from State Government 39,217 33,622 - - 39,217 33,622 
Grants transfer (324,524) (263,298) 324,524 263,298  -  - 
Amount available for  
distribution

 - - 311,082 250,913 311,082 250,913 

Total returns to beneficiaries  - - 279,607 255,785 279,607 255,785 
Profit (loss) for the period  - - 31,475 (4,872) 31,475 (4,872)

*Includes cost recovery from Service Level Arrangement with Healthway



Lotterywest Annual Report 2018-1958

3. Our income sources 
How we obtain our income
This section provides additional information about how Lotterywest obtains its income  
and the relevant accounting policy notes that govern the recognition and measurement  
of this income. The primary income received and the relevant notes are:

Note 2019 
$000

2018
$000

Income
Sale of lottery products 3.1 985,251 854,564 
Interest revenue 3.2 9,784 8,095 
Other revenue 3.3 14,224 9,650 
Gains 3.4 596 1,612 
Grants from State Government 3.5 39,217 33,622 

1,049,072 907,543 

 
3.1 Sale of lottery products

2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Sales of lottery products 985,251 854,564 
Cost of lottery sales
Prizes (555,079) (482,507)
Printing costs (3,279) (3,161)
Commission paid to retailers (71,198) (63,222)
Goods and Services Tax (39,217) (33,622)

(668,773) (582,512)
Trading Profit 316,478 272,052 

Margin percentage 32.1% 31.8%

Revenue recognition
Sale of lottery product revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
receivable. Revenue is recognised from the sale of tickets when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Sales revenue represents gross sales of all Lotto games, Cash 3, Soccer Pools (retired in 
2018), Super 66 and Scratch’n’Win tickets. Sales from lotto products are recognised as at 
draw dates of the respective games. Sales from Scratch’n’Win tickets are recognised when 
the Scratch’n’Win books are activated. 

Cost of lottery sales

Prizes
Prize expense and liabilites are allocated when the sales are recognised at draw dates or 
when the Scratch’n’Win books are activated.

Allocation of prize monies range between 50% to 70% of sales. The prize allocation for 
national Lotto games is determined by the National Bloc members. 

Division 1 prizes are available for payment two weeks after the date of the draw, subject to 
claim.  Other prizes are paid directly upon receipt of a valid winning ticket, which remains 
valid for up to 12 months from the date of draw. Prizes for Play Online members are 
automatically paid to the members account.

Set for Life’s 1st Prize is paid at  $20,000 per month for a period of 20 years. Set for Life 
games include a ‘demand feature’ requiring payment of the remaining face value of the prize 
upon the death of a winner to their estate. As a result, fair value reflects value at the earliest 
time the demand event could arise resulting in fair value reflecting the remaining face value 
of unpaid prizes.

Commission paid to retailers
Retailers are paid a commission for the sale of Lotterywest products. It is recognised 
when the Recipient Created Tax Invoice (RCTI) is issued to the retailers once a week. The 
commission rate is periodically reviewed subject to Ministerial approval.  

Goods and Services Tax
The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is calculated on the gaming margin, which is defined as 
the subscription received less the amount of prizes. In accordance with the GST legislation, 
GST is attributed to the full amount of sales in advance. GST is also calculated on retailer and 
player fees.
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3.2 Interest revenue
2019 2018
$000 $000

Interest revenue 9,784 8,095

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues.

3.3 Other revenue
2019 2018
$000 $000

Forfeited prizes 8,314 5,371 
Retailers fees 4,667 4,203 
Service Level Arrangement - Healthway 1,116 -
Players registration service fees - 11 
Other revenue 127 65 

14,224 9,650 

Forfeited prizes
Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players have 12 months to claim 
a lottery prize. If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is forfeited.  Forfeited 
prizes are included in the pool of funds that become available for distribution to the Western 
Australian community through Lotterywest’s direct grants program.

Retailer fees
Retailer fees comprise Lotto Service fees (representing the contribution from our retailers 
towards the costs associated with maintaining and supporting the on-line network) and 
Retailer Establishment fees (representing contributions from retailers towards Lotterywest’s 
costs associated with the establishment, relocation or change of ownership of a lottery 
outlet). These fees are recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
receivable.

Service Level Arrangement - Healthway
Lotterywest has entered into a Service Level Arrangement with the Western Australian Health 
Promotion Foundation (Healthway) to provide grant administration services and support. The 
agreement commenced on 1 January 2019.

3.4 Gains

Gain on disposal of non-current assets
2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Net proceeds from disposals of
   Land and building - 620 
   Plant and equipment 6  - 
   Work of Art - 3 
Carrying amount of
   Land and building - (615)
   Plant and equipment (10) (69)
   Work of Art - (58)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets (4) (119)

Other gains 600 1,731 

Total gain/(loss) 596 1,612 

3.5 Grants from State Government

2019 
$000

2018
$000

GST reimbursement for gaming margin 39,217 33,622

Revenue from grants, donations, gifts or other non-reciprocal contributions that are 
not contributions by owners are recognised at fair value. Revenue is recognised when 
Lotterywest has obtained control of the contribution (that is usually the date cash is received), 
it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount of the contribution 
can be reliably measured. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can 
be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

The State Government reimburses gaming operators (including Lotterywest) for GST paid on 
the operators’ margin in accordance with agreement between the States when the GST was 
originally introduced. GST paid on the gaming margin is disclosed as a cost of sales (see Note 
3.1).  Treasurer’s Instruction 1102 requires that reimbursement of GST is disclosed as a Grant 
from the State Government.
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4. Use of our funding
Expenses incurred in the delivery of services
This section provides additional information about how Lotterywest’s funding is applied and 
the accounting policies that are relevant for an understanding of the items recognised in the 
financial statements. 

Note 2019
$000

2018
$000

Operating expenses 4.1 69,217 74,118 
Distribution to grant beneficiaries 4.2 279,607 255,785 

348,824 329,903 

4.1 Operating expenses

Note 2019
$000

2018
$000

Employee benefits expenses 4.1.1 26,026 28,940 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4.1.2 7,854 9,649 
Telecommunications and gaming system expenses 5,565 5,033 
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses^ 18,853 18,844 
Write-down of non-current assets classified as held 
for resale

300 -

Other expenses^^ 10,619 11,652 
69,217 74,118 

^ Sales, marketing and distribution expenses mainly relate to advertising and production 
costs across various channels.

^^ Total other expenses for 2019 includes professional fees $1.17m [2018:$1.84m], employment 
on-cost $1.72m [2018: $1.83m], property lease cost $1.66m [2018:$1.67m] and various audit 
fees $0.92m [2018:$0.68m]. 

Service type allocation
Total operating expenses are associated to service types.  All costs associated with delivering 
the Healthway SLA are allocated to the Grants and community development service type.

2019
 $000

2018
$000

Lottery operations 54,659 61,733 
Grants and community development 14,558 12,385 

69,217 74,118 

4.1.1 Employee benefits expenses

2019
$000

2018
$000

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits 23,351 24,360 
Termination benefits 402 2,216 
Superannuation 2,273 2,364 

26,026 28,940 

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits include accrued wages and leave 
entitlements. 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before normal retirement 
date or when an employee accepts an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination 
of employment. Termination benefits are recognised when Lotterywest is demonstrably 
committed to terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed 
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Superannuation is recognised as and when the contributions fall due. It comprises 
contributions paid to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS) concurrent contributions, 
the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the Government Employees Superannuation 
Board Schemes (GESBs), or other superannuation funds. 

GSS (concurrent contributions) is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees 
and whole-of-government reporting. It is however a defined contribution plan for 
Lotterywest’s purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) paid to 
GESB extinguish Lotterywest’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.

Liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits 
attributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the 
Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by 
Lotterywest to the GESB.

The GESB and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements 
in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria 
for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates.
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4.1.2 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

2019
$000

2018
$000Note

Depreciation 5.1.2

Buildings 103 131 

Leasehold improvements 458 450 

Equipment and fittings 1,268 1,114 

Computer equipment 1,577 1,460 

Total depreciation 3,406 3,155 

Amortisation 5.1.3
Intangible assets 4,448 6,493 

Total amortisation 4,448 6,493 

Total depreciation and amortisation 7,854 9,648 

All non-current assets, excluding land, are depreciated or amortised over their estimated 
useful life, consistent with the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line basis rates which are reviewed annually.  
Estimated useful lives for each class of non-current assets are as follows:

Class Useful Life
Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 12 years
Equipment and fittings 3 to 10 years
Computer equipment 3 to 8 years

4.2 Distribution to grant beneficiaries

2019
$000

2018
$000

Statutory grants
State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012) 143,690 124,633 
Arts Lotteries Account 17,961 15,579 
Sports Lotteries Account 17,961 15,579 

179,612 155,791 

Direct grants
University of Western Australia (Festival of Perth) 7,700 7,558 
Screenwest (Commercial film production) 7,700 7,558 
Direct grants (Net of grants not taken up)^ 84,595 84,878 

99,995 99,994 
Total distribution to grant beneficiaries 279,607 255,785 

^ The total of grants not taken up and reversed during the financial year was $2.05 million 
[2018: $3.88 million].

The Act prescribes for the following allocations from net subscriptions of all products. Net 
subscriptions comprise the following:

a.) In the case of a fixed prize game, the entry fee less any add-on comission and prize 
liability; and

b.) In the case of a pari-mutuel prize game, the entry fee less any add-on commission and 
the prize fund.
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Statutory grants
From net subscriptions, these grants are made to the credit of the Consolidated Account for 
subsequent appropriation to Agency Special Purpose Accounts.  

 • 40% to the State Pool Account of the State established under National Health Funding 
Pool Act 2012 

 • 5% to the Arts Lotteries Account 

 • 5% to the Sports Lotteries Account.

Direct grants
In addition to the statutory grants, the Act mandates: 

 • a minimum allocation of 12.5% of net subscriptions to eligible organisations for approved 
purposes; and

 • up to 5% of net subscriptions in total for the University of Western Australia for the Festival 
of Perth and ScreenWest for Commercial Film Production.  

Any remaining surplus (including surplus reserves generated from prior periods and 
unclaimed prizes as they fall due in the reporting period) is available for distribution to eligible 
organisations as the Commission thinks fit and the Minister approves.

Direct grants to eligible organisations for approved purposes are recognised in full when 
approved by the Minister. Unconditional grants are paid in full upon the Minister’s approval.  
Conditional grants are paid as and when conditions are fulfilled.

When a grant is not taken up, or a portion is returned, the amount it is written back against 
the current year’s grant expenditure.

5. Assets
This section sets out both the key accounting policies and financial information about  
the performance of these assets:

5.1 Key assets

2019 
$000

2018
$000Note

Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale 5.1.1 5,100 -
Property, plant and equipment 5.1.2 19,034 27,845 
Intangibles 5.1.3 8,078 12,386 

32,212 40,231 

5.1.1 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

2019 
$000

2018
$000

Land and building (a)

Opening balance  -   615 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
during the year

5,400 -

Less write-down from cost to fair value less 
cost to sell recognised in profit or loss 

(300) -

Less assets sold - (615)
5,100 -

(a) Transferred from property, plant, and equipment at fair value.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in 
the Statement of Financial Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated 
or amortised.

The property located at 74 Walters Drive, Osborne Park was classified as asset held for 
sale when it was available on the market in February 2019 with carrying value of $5.4 
million. Lotterywest entered into a contract of sale with a buyer for $5.1 million in June 
2019 and therefore has recognised an impairment loss of $0.3 million.
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5.1.2 Property, plant and equipment

Land Buildings
Leasehold

improvements
Equipment 

& fittings
Works  
of arts

Computer  
equipment

Work in  
progress Total

Year ended 30 June 2018 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

1 July 2017
Gross carrying amount 6,329 5,326 5,385 7,880 121 10,432 11,933 47,406

Accumulated depreciation  -    -   (299) (5,266) - (7,042) - (12,607)
Accumulated impairment loss  -    -   - -  -   -  -   -
Carrying amount at start of year 6,329 5,326 5,086 2,614 121 3,390 11,933 34,799

Additions - - 96 1,090 - 1,925 - 3,111
Transfer from work in progress - - - 1,685 - 4,438 - 6,123
Transfer to non-current assets - - - - - - (11,933) (11,933)
Classified as held for sale - - - - - - - -
Other disposals - - - (69) (58) - - (127)
Revaluation 131 (1,104) - - - - - (973)
Derecognition - - - - - - - -
Depreciation - (131) (450) (1,115) - (1,459) - (3,155)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2018 6,460 4,091 4,732 4,205 63 8,294 - 27,845

Year ended 30 June 2019

1 July 2018
Gross carrying amount 6,460 4,091 5,482 10,243 63 16,795 - 43,133
Accumulated depreciation  -  - (749) (6,038) - (8,501) - (15,288)
Accumulated impairment loss  -  - - -  - -  - -
Carrying amount at start of year 6,460 4,091 4,733 4,205 63 8,294 - 27,845

Additions - - - - - 120 259 379
Transfer from work in progress - - - - - - - -
Transfer to non-current assets - - - - - - - -
Classified as held for sale (3,600) (1,800) - - - - - (5,400)
Other disposals - - - (10) - - - (10)
Revaluation 329 (703) - - - - - (374)
Derecognition - - - - - - - -
Depreciation - (103) (458) (1,268) - (1,578) - (3,406)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2019 3,189 1,485 4,275 2,927 63 6,836 259 19,034
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Property, plant and equipment 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are capitalised or recognised 
as assets and expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and 
equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed in full in the current year 
(other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date 
of acquisition. This also applies to grant properties which may have reverted back to 
Lotterywest. Where a transfer of beneficial ownership in land and/or buildings from a Trust 
Estate  has occurred, at no cost or for nominal cost, the fair value is recognised at the date of 
the reversion.

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition as an asset, Lotterywest uses the revaluation method for the 
measurement of land and buildings and the cost method for all other assets.  Land and 
buildings are carried at their fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and 
accumulated impairment losses. All other assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the 
basis of current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.

When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated 
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount.

Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on 
the basis of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land 
use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of 
replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated 
replacement cost.  Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated 
replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are 
restated proportionately. 

Valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the independent valuers and 
recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially 
from the assets fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Land and buildings revaluation decrements for 2019 were $0.37 million [2018: $0.97 million]. 

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of assets, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Impairment 
Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment 
at each reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount 
is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset 
is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where 
an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable 
amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. 

As Lotterywest is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus 
asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is 
materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant 
change in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration 
of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling 
replacement costs.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value 
less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from 
the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair 
value is determined by reference to market based evidence. Where fair value is determined 
by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and 
the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Work in Progress
Costs associated with assets under development for use by Lotterywest are recognised 
as Work in Progress.  Once completed, the assets are transferred to the appropriate asset 
account and are depreciated or amortised, as appropriate. No depreciation is provided during 
construction of assets. 
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Fair value measurements

Assets measured at fair value Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Fair Value  
at end of 

Period
2019 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - 5,100 - 5,100 
Land - 3,189 - 3,189 
Buildings - 1,485 - 1,485 

- 9,774 - 9,774 

During the year there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.

Assets measured at fair value Level 
 1

Level  
2

Level 
3

Fair Value  
at end of 

Period
2018 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - - - -
Land  - 6,460  - 6,460
Buildings  - 4,091  - 4,091

 - 10,551  - 10,551

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values
Level 2 fair values of Non-current assets held for sale, Land and Buildings are derived using 
the market approach. Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings in 
close proximity is used to determine price per square metre.

Non-current assets held for sale have been written down to fair value less costs to sell. Fair 
value has been determined by reference to contract of sale received from a buyer in June 2019.

5.1.3 Intangibles

2019
$000

2018
$000Computer software

Opening balance
Gross carrying amount 47,370 41,553
Accumulated amortisation (34,984) (31,140)
Carrying amount at start of period 12,386 10,413

Additions 140 2,656
Transfer from Work in Progress - 5,810
Amortisation expense (4,448) (6,493)
Carrying amount at end of period 8,078 12,386

Initial recognition
Acquisitions of intangible assets and internally generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or 
more are capitalised and expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below 
$5,000 are fully expensed in the current year. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost method is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with a finite useful life is calculated for the period of the 
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.  
All intangible assets controlled by Lotterywest have a finite useful life and zero residual value 
(i.e. computer software is 3 to 8 years).

Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and 
equipment.  Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as 
an intangible asset.  Software costing less than $5,000 is fully expensed in the year of 
acquisition.

Development costs
Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward when the future 
economic benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are 
likely to exceed $5,000.

Impairment
As at 30 June 2019 there were no indications of impairment to intangible assets. Lotterywest 
held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment annually or when an 
indication of impairment is identified. The policy in connection with testing for impairment is 
outlined in note 5.1.2.
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5.2 Other assets

2019 
$000

2018
$000Note

Inventories 5.2.1 1,744 1,553 
Receivables 5.2.2 20,028 11,747 
Prepayments 615 933 

22,387 14,233 

5.2.1 Inventories

2019
$000

2018
$000

Inventories 1,744 1,553

Inventories are valued, on the first-in, first-out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Inventories comprise of instant lotto tickets and other consumables.

5.2.2 Receivables

2019
$000

2018
$000

Current
Trade receivables 10,290 6,132 
GST receivables 5,529 2,043 
Accrued interest 1,859 1,457 
Other debtors 2,350 2,115 

20,028 11,747 

Trade receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less any allowances for 
uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The carrying amount of net trade receivables is 
equivalent to fair value as the receivables from retailers are settled on a weekly basis and all 
other receivables are settled within 30 days. Lotterywest holds bank guarantees as security 
for the retailer debtors and monitors the collection of monies from the retailers on a weekly 
basis.  Based on historical default rates, the expected credit losses on trade receivables are 
deemed to be immaterial. All other receivables are not considered to be impaired. 

6. Financing 
This section sets out the material balances, disclosures and risk management policies 
associated with the financing and cash flows of Lotterywest.

2019 
$000

2018
$000Note

Cash and cash equivalents 6.1 26,374 17,980 
Financial assets at amortised cost 6.2 285,382 234,938 
Commitments 6.3 25,092 28,145 

336,848 281,063 

6.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash on hand and 
cash at bank.

2019 
$000

2018
$000Note

Cash on hand 1 1 
Cash at bank 26,373 17,979 
Total per Statement of Cash Flows 26,374 17,980 

6.1.1 Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled 
to related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
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6.1.2 Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash flows provided by operating activities

2019 
$000

2018
$000

Profit/(loss) for the period 31,475 (4,872)
Non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation expense 7,854 9,648 
Lease incentive amortisation (402) (402)
Write down of non-current assets classified as held for sale 300 -
Services received free from charge from non State Government 279 23 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal 4 119 
Other gains  -   (1,731)

Cash flows to/(from) Government
Statutory grants 179,612 155,791 
GST recoup revenue from State Government (39,217) (33,622)

(Increase)/decrease in assets
GST reimbursement (receivable)/payable (3,486) 463 
Trade debtors (4,158) (1,779)
Other debtors (1,115) (1,953)
Prepayments 318 (193)
Inventories (191) (160)
Accrued interest (402) (282)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Other liabilities 1,066 (2,346)
Direct grants (9,293) 5,889 
Unclaimed prize payable (4,525) 2,988 
Unpaid prize payable 12,430 12,970 
Trade creditors 359 (14)
Other creditors and accruals 16,852 432 
Current provisions (41) (514)
Non-current provisions 279 (186)
Prize reserve provisions 6,124 (5,348)
Grants from State Government 3,637 84 

Net cash provided by operating activities before cash flows 
to State Government (excluding investing activities)

197,759 135,005 

6.2 Financial assets at amortised cost
Lotterywest’s financial investments are made in accordance with the Financial Management  
Act 2006 and the Trustees Act 1962 (as amended).

2019 
$000

2018
$000

Current investments (maturity less than 1 year)
Short term products 181,789 79,000 

Non-current investments (maturity more than 1 year) 
Floating rate instruments 103,593 155,938 

Total financial assets at amortised cost^ 285,382 234,938 

^ Market value at 30 June 2019 was $292.3 million [2018:$237.7m].

Lotterywest has re-classified and measured its investments as Financial assets at amortised 
cost beginning 1 July 2018. The investments are held to collect contractual cash flows solely 
comprised of principal and interest.  Refer note 8.1 Financial Risk.

6.3 Commitments
Lotterywest typically has commitments for property leases, vehicle leases, technology 
service agreements which extend over several years and for approved capital works. The 
commitments disclosed below are inclusive of GST where relevant.
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6.3.1 Non-cancellable lease commitments
 Commitments in relation to leases contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the 
financial statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Non-cancellable property lease commitments(a) 
Within 1 year 1,820 1,769
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 7,633 7,362
Later than 5 years 8,315 10,601

17,768 19,732
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments(b)(c)

Within 1 year 298 76
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 292 129
Later than 5 years 1 -

591 205
Total lease commitments 18,359 19,937 

(a) The property leases are non-cancellable and have terms ranging from 1 year to 12 years, 
with rent payable monthly in advance. Depending on the terms and conditions of the 
lease concerned, rent review provisions exist which generally result in rental increases 
throughout the lease term. Options exist in most leases which permit leases to be 
extended under the prevailing lease terms and conditions.

Equal instalments of the lease payments are expensed over the lease term (i.e. on a 
straight line basis over the lease term), as this is representative of the pattern of benefits to 
be derived from the leased vehicles and business premises. Total lease rental recognised 
as Other Expenses during the year 30 June 2019 was $1.66 million [2018:$1.67m].

Lease incentives received from entering into operating leases are recognised as unearned 
income and amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the lease term.

(b) These amounts were provided by the Department of Finance and relate to Lotterywest’s 
motor vehicle lease arrangements which operate under the State Fleet Funding Facility 
contract. Lotterywest’s vehicle leases are generally for three to four years. 

(c) Lotterywest leases a data centre space under a non-cancellable lease with a 2 year term 
commencing from  28 January 2019, with the options to renew the lease at the end of the 
two year term for an additional term of 3 years.

6.3.2 Capital commitments
Capital expenditure commitments in relation to information technology capital purchases  
contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities  
are payable as follows:

2019
$000

2018
$000

Within 1 year 1,483 186
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

1,483 186

6.3.3 Other commitments
Other expenditure commitments in relation to information technology maintenance, support 
and various inventory items contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the 
financial statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

2019
$000

2018
$000

Within 1 year 3,165 2,981
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,085 5,041

5,250 8,022
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7. Liabilities
This section sets out those liabilities that arose from Lotterywest’s controlled operations  
and incurred during normal operations: 

2019
$000

2018
$000Note

Payables 7.1 224,385 203,539 
Provisions 7.2 34,033 27,671 
Other liabilities 7.3 9,643 8,979 

268,061 240,189 

7.1 Payables
Payables, including amounts not yet billed, are recognised when Lotterywest becomes 
obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services for which 
settlement has not yet occurred. Payables, other than those that relate to prizes and returns 
to beneficiaries, are generally settled within 30 days and the carrying amount considered 
equivalent to fair value.

2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Current
Prizes
Unclaimed prizes in current year(a) 22,041 26,566 
Unpaid prize payables(b) 2,450 1,730 

24,491 28,296 
Returns to beneficiaries
State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012) 5,690 1,586 
Arts Lotteries Account 961 201 
Sports Lotteries Account 961 201 
Direct grants(c) 125,816 135,109 

133,428 137,097 
Other
Trade creditors 4,133 3,774 
Other creditors and accruals 21,153 4,902 

25,286 8,676 
183,205 174,069 

Non-current
Prizes
Unpaid prize payables(b) 41,180 29,470 
Total payables 224,385 203,539 

(a) Prizes won but not yet claimed.

(b) Discontinued Scratch’n’Win game where the prize is paid in the form of an annuity and 
the Set for Life 1st prize future maturity payments. Amounts payable more than 12 months 
post balance sheet date are classified as non-current. 

(c) Direct grants approved but not yet paid.  

7.2 Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount.  Lotterywest only recognises a 
provision where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event 
and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimate.

2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Current
Employee benefits

Annual leave(a) 2,404 2,333 
Long service leave(b) 2,437 2,546 

Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c) 311 314 
Prize reserve provisions(d) 27,173 21,049 

32,325 26,242 
Non-current
Employee benefits

Long service leave(b) 1,400 1,138 
Superannuation entitlements(e) 218 218 

Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c) 90 73 

1,708 1,429 
Total provisions 34,033 27,671 
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(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Assessments 
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

2019 
$000

2018
$000

 Annual leave
 Within 12 months 1,589 1,399 
 More than 12 months 815 934 

2,404 2,333 
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to 
be made in relation to services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

(b) Unconditional long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there 
is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period.  

Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current 
liabilities because Lotterywest has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as 
follows:

2019
$000

2018
$000 

Long service leave
Within 12 months 929 967 
More than 12 months 2,908 2,717 

3,837 3,684 

Key estimates and judgements – Long service leave

The long service leave liabilities are calculated at present value as Lotterywest does not 
expect to wholly settle the amounts within 12 months. The present value is measured 
taking into account the present value of expected future payments to be made in 
relation to services provided by employees up to the reporting date. These payments are 
estimated using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement, and 
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government 
bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash 
outflows.

In calculating Lotterywest’s long service leave provision, several estimations and 
assumptions have been made.  These include expected future salary rates, salary inflation, 
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.  

(c) The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment 
of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance.  The provision is the 
present value of expected future payments.  

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee 
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment 
to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other 
Expenses’ and are not included as part of ‘Employee Benefits Expense’. The related liability 
is included in ‘Employment On-Costs Provisions’.

2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year 387 430
Additional/(reversals of) provisions recognised 205 156
Payment/other sacrifices of economic benefit (191) (199)
Carrying amount at end of year 401 387

(d) The prize reserve provisions are used to guarantee jackpots and bonus draws in the 
jackpotting lottery games and the advertised prizes on the non-jackpotting games. 
The levels of prize reserves are administered by the Australian Lotto Bloc following 
pre-determined guidelines and funded by way of an allocation from each draw into 
the respective Prize Reserve provision. The settlement of the prize reserve provision is 
expected within the next 12 months.

2019 
$000

2018
$000

Prize reserve provisions
Carrying amount at start of year 21,049 26,397
Additional provisions recognised 54,626 51,321
Payments made to the prize reserve accounts and prizes paid (48,502) (56,669)
Carrying amount at end of year 27,173 21,049

(e) The liability for superannuation entitlements has been provided by GESB.

Pension scheme
Lotterywest has no liability or defined benefit cost under AASB 119 arising from the 
Pension Scheme.

Gold State Super (transferred benefits)
Nature of the benefits provided by the Scheme

Some former Pension Scheme members transferred to Gold State Super receiving a lump 
sum benefit at retirement, death or invalidity which is related to their salary during their 
employment and indexed during any deferral period after leaving public sector employment.
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Description of the regulatory framework

The Scheme operates under the State Superanniation Act 2000 (Western Australia) and 
the State Superannuation Regulations 2001 (Western Australia). Although the scheme 
is not fomally subject to the Superannuation Industry Supervision (SIS) legislation, the 
Western Australian government has agred to operate the scheme in accordance with the 
spirit of the SIS legislation.
Pre-transfer Benefit Gold State Superannuation Scheme

2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) 218 218
Net defined benefit liability 218 218

Reconciliation of DBO
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 218 218
Interest cost(i) - 2
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions(i)

- -

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions(i)

- -

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from liability experience(i) - (2)
Benefits paid - -
Present value of DBO at end of the year 218 218 

(i)  Due to the immaterial effect of actuarial (gains)/losses, the net movements have been 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income – Expenses Lottery Operations. 

Significant actuarial assumptions at the reporting date

Assumptions to determine start of DBO and  
defined benefit cost for the current year

2019 
%

2018 
%

Discount rate (active members)(ii) 2.60 2.26
Expected salary increase rate 4.20 3.70

 
Assumptions to determine DBO at the valuation date

2019 
%

2018 
%

Discount rate (active members)(ii) 1.40 2.60

Expected salary increase rate 4.20 4.20

(ii) The discount rate as at 31 May 2019, based on the Government bond maturing in November 2027

Funding arrangements
The employer contributes, as required, to meet the benefits paid.

Expected contributions
Employer contributions of $218,000 are expected to be paid to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme in the subsequent annual reporting period.

Maturity profile of DBO
The weighted average duration of Lotterywest’s defined benefit obligation is 0.0 years. The 
obligation is currently payable and no liability will remain once the obligation is paid.

7.3 Other liabilities
2019
$000

2018
$000

Current
Sales in advance(a) 5,955 4,889 
Lease incentive unearned income(b) 402 402

6,357 5,291
Non-current
Lease incentive unearned income(b) 3,286 3,688

3,286 3,688
Total other liabilities 9,643 8,979 

(a) This represents tickets sold which relate to games where the draw will occur after the 
financial year and therefore the sales proceeds have not been recognised as revenue.  

(b) Incentives received from entering into operating leases and amortised on a straight line 
basis over 12 years, being the lease term.
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8. Risks and contingencies
This note sets out the key Lotterywest risk management policies and measurement techniques.

Notes
Financial risk management 8.1
Contingent assets and liabilities 8.2

8.1 Financial risk management
Financial instruments held by Lotterywest are cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, 
floating rate notes, floating rate deposits, receivables and payables.  Lotterywest has limited 
exposure to financial risks attributed to investments held. Lotterywest holds two investment 
portfolios, one being a general portfolio of relatively short duration and the other being a ‘Set 
for Life’ portfolio of longer duration to meet future annuity liabilities.  Lotterywest’s investment 
portfolios are managed by the Western Australia Treasury Corporation (WATC) within the 
constraints of the Trustee’s Act; Lotterywest’s Investment Policy and approved Service Level 
Agreement which includes investment parameters to manage risk. 

(a) Summary of risks and risk management

Credit risk
Credit risk arises where there is a possibility that counterparties will default on interest or 
capital repayments resulting in financial losses to Lotterywest.

In measuring risk at a counterparty level there are three components which include (a) the 
probability of default by the counterparty; (b) the current exposure to the counterparty; and 
(c) the likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations.

(a) Probability of default:  Lotterywest will only deal with counterparties that have a minimum 
credit rating issued by Standard and Poors of A- long term and Moody’s of A3 long term, 
which is above investment grade (BBB). Although investment in BBB grade investments 
short term under certain conditions is possible.  

(b) Current exposure to counterparties:  Lotterywest deals mainly with major financial 
institutions.  The average exposure to these counterparties was $334.20 million (2018: 
$311.1 million).  The maximum exposure to each counterparty is determined by their credit 
rating.  The higher the credit rating the greater the maximum exposure, subject to upper 
limits counterparty’s and aggregate class limits. 

(c) Likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations:  Lotterywest does not trade securities, nor 
are there any investments in securities which have embedded derivatives.  Consequently 
Lotterywest does not have exposure to market movements in relation to capital 
repayment.  Given the high credit quality of investments held, the risk of default in relation 
to interest or capital is very low.

Lotterywest collects monies electronically from its retail network on a weekly basis and 
monitors the performance of retail outlets on an ongoing basis.   All new retail outlets are 
required to provide bank guarantees equivalent to one week’s takings.  Consequently there 
is no material default risk for receivables from retailers. Lotterywest does not accept credit 
payment from customers purchasing directly from Lotterywest.  

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when Lotterywest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall 
due.  Lotterywest is exposed to liquidity risk through normal trading and grant payment. 
Lotterywest manages liquidity risk by: providing for volatility; limiting the direct grant 
program to a sustainable level; and limiting investment terms to meet forecasted payment 
outcomes as and when they fall due. Longer term investments may also be committed or 
sold to meet any short term liquidity demands should they arise.

Market risk
Lotterywest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price 
risks.  Lotterywest’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the 
investment portfolios and changes in interest rates which impact on investment income.  The 
current outlook for interest rates is considered relatively stable with some prospect of further 
falls in interest rates unlikely to have an adverse impact on existing investments held. 

Lotterywest has no borrowings.  

The primary objective of Lotterywest’s investment portfolios are capital preservation whilst 
generating an appropriate return.  Investment in high quality products where all counter 
parties are investment grade and investments are held to maturity provides low risk of capital 
loss.  The current investment portfolios only contain bonds, term deposits and floating rate 
notes. 

(b) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019 
$000

2018
$000

Financial assets
Cash 26,374 17,980 
Loan and receivables(i) 14,499 9,704 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 285,382 234,938 

(i) Excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (statutory receivable).

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 244,385 203,539 
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(c) Financial instrument disclosures

Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk exposure
WATC has determined the value of Lotterywest’s expected credit loss for 2019 based on the probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default using data from Bloomberg and 
Moody’s across the total investments as being $102,078 (2018: $63,456).  As the expected credit loss is immaterial in comparison to the total investments, no adjustments have been made.

Lotterywest’s maximum exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown on the following 
table (the table is based on information provided by WATC). 

The contractual maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted principal and interest receivable or payable amounts. There are no financial assets that are past due 
and therefore there is no further ageing analysis for the financial assets. No financial assets are held that had their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past 
due or impaired.

Maturity analysis of financial assets

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount

Weighted 
average 
interest 

rate

Fixed  
interest  

rate

Variable 
interest 

rate

Non- 
interest 
bearing

Nominal 
amount

Within  
1 year

1-3  
years

3-5  
years

More than 
5 years

2019 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26,374 1.59 - 26,374 - 26,374 26,374  -  -  - 
Receivables 14,499 -  -    -   14,499 14,499 14,499  -  -  - 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 285,382 2.77 178,285 107,097 - 286,229 182,139 78,596 12,316 13,178 

326,255 178,285 133,471 14,499 327,102 223,012 78,596 12,316 13,178 

2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,980 1.47  - 17,980  - 17,980 17,980  -  -  - 
Receivables 9,704 -  -  - 9,704 9,704 9,704  -  -  - 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 234,938 2.64 84,638 150,300  - 235,732 79,144 123,075 20,335 13,178 

262,622 84,638 168,280 9,704 263,416 106,828 123,075 20,335 13,178 

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities
2019
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 224,385  -  -  - 224,385 224,385 183,205  4,800  4,800 31,580 

224,385 - - 224,385 224,385 183,205 4,800 4,800 31,580 

2018
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 203,539  -  -  - 203,539 203,539 174,069  3,410 3,360 22,700 

203,539 - - 203,539 203,539 174,069  3,410 3,360 22,700 
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Fair value
All financial assets and liabilities, whether carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at 
amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in 
the specific notes.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table summarises the interest rate sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities at 
the end of the reporting period. It assumes that any change in interest rates is held constant 
throughout the reporting period.  The sensitivity analysis provided is a movement of -0.5% 
and +0.5%. (2018: -0.5% and +0.5%)

As at 30 June 2019 the cash rate was 1.25% (2018: 1.5%)

Carrying
amount

-0.5% 
Change

(loss)

+0.5% 
Change

profit
2019   $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26,374 (132) 132 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 285,382 (1,427) 1,427 
Receivables 14,499  -  - 

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised costs 224,385  -  - 
Total increase/(decrease) (1,559) 1,559 

2018  
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,980 (90) 90 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 234,938 (1,175) 1,175 
Receivables 9,704  -  - 

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised costs 203,539  -  - 
Total increase/(decrease) (1,265) 1,265 

8.2 Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, measured at the best estimate 
inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

Lotterywest is not aware of any contingent assets or contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2019.

9. Other disclosures
This section includes additional material disclosures to comply with Australian Accounting  
Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions.

Notes
Equity 9.1
Initial application of Australian Accounting Standards 9.2
Future impact of Accounting Standards not yet operative 9.3
Services received free of charge 9.4
Services provided free of charge 9.5
Remuneration of auditors     9.6
Key management personnel 9.7
Related party transactions 9.8
Related and affiliated bodies 9.9
Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 9.10
Supplementary financial information 9.11
Explanatory statement 9.12

9.1 Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in Lotterywest on behalf of 
the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of Lotterywest and 
comprises the following:

2019 
$000

2018 
$000

Asset revaluation reserve(a)

Balance at start of year 5,472 6,445 
Asset revaluation (decrements)/increments (374) (973)
Balance at the end of the period 5,098 5,472 
Retained earnings (b)

Balance at start of the year 61,721 66,593 
Profit/(loss) for the period 31,475 (4,872)
Balance at the end of the period 93,196 61,721 
Total equity 98,294 67,193 

(a) The asset revaluation reserve records increments/decrements in the fair value of land and 
buildings.  Decrements are recognised in this reserve only to the extent that they were 
previously recognised as increments for the same asset class.

(b) This represents the accumulated profits from previous years and the profit or (loss) in the 
current year.
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9.2 Initial application of Australian Accounting Standards

AASB 9: Financial instruments 
1 Jan 2019
AASB 9 Financial instruments replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurements for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing 
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and 
measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.

Lotterywest has applied AASB 9 prospectively, with an initial application date of 1 July 
2018. The adoption of AASB 9 has resulted in only minor changes in accounting policies 
and disclosures in the financial statements. In accordance with AASB 9.7.2.15, comparative 
information continues to be reported under AASB 139. The changes are outlined below: 

The effect of adopting AASB 9 as at 1 July 2018 was assessed as not material, and therefore 
no adjustment was required to be made.

(a) Classification and measurement

Under AASB 9, financial assets are measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification 
is based on two criteria: the business model for managing the assets; and whether the 
assets’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the 
principal amount outstanding.

The assessment of Lotterywest’s business model was made as of the date of initial 
application, 1 July 2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on financial 
assets are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on the facts and 
circumstances at the time of initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of AASB 9, which did not have a significant 
impact on Lotterywest, resulted in the following changes:

 • Trade receivables and Loans and advances (i.e. Other debtors) classified as ‘Loans and 
receivables’ as at 30 June 2018 are held to collect contractual cash flows and give rise to 
cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are classified and 
measured as ‘Financial assets at amortised cost’ beginning 1 July 2018.

 • Financial investment classified as ‘Held to maturity financial assets’ as at 30 June 2018 are 
held to collect contractual cash flows solely comprised of principal and interest. These are 
classified and measured as ‘Financial assets at amortised cost’ beginning 1 July 2018, as 
the Held to Maturity classification has not been retained under AASB 9.

 • Lotterywest did not designate any financial assets as FVOCI or FVTPL.

In summary, upon the adoption of AASB 9, Lotterywest had the following reclassifications as 
at 1 July 2018:

Financial assets

Previous 
classifications 
under AASB 

139

New 
classifications 
under AASB 9

Carrying 
amount 

under 
AASB 139

$000

Carrying 
amount 

under 
AASB 9

$000

Cash and Cash equivalent
Loans and 
receivables

Amortised cost 17,980 17,980

Loans and receivables 
(accounts receivables)

Loans and 
receivables

Amortised cost 11,747 11,747

Held to maturity 
investments (term deposits, 
floating rate notes)

Held to 
maturity

Amortised cost 234,938 234,938

Total financial assets 264,665 264,665

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities (prizes 
and other payables, and return to beneficiaries).

(b) Impairment

AASB 9 has replaced the impairment methodology of AASB 139’s incurred loss approach 
with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach where an allowance for ECLs for 
all financial assets not held at FVTPL is to be recognised.

Lotterywest has reviewed its impairment methodology on Trade receivables and Investments. 
Based on the historical default rates combined with the credit enhancement in place 
(retailer’s bank guarantees), the ECLs for Trade receivables is immaterial and no impairment 
allowance is necessary.

In regards to the ECLs for Investments, the amount is expected to be immaterial relative to 
the total investment portfolios. As the amount is small and has an immaterial effect on the 
balance of Lotterywest’s investment portfolio, no adjustments were made. The ECLs have 
been disclosed as a note only - note 6.2 Financial assets at amortised cost.
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9.3 Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
Lotterywest cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 
permitted by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 
Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101. Where applicable, Lotterywest plans 
to apply the following Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.  

AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and relevant amending standards 
1 Jan 2019
This Standard establishes the principles that an entity shall apply to report useful information 
to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue 
and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The mandatory application date of 
this Standard is 1 January 2019.

Lotterywest has reviewed this standard and does not expect any changes in recognising 
income derived from selling the lottery products and instant lottery tickets.

AASB 16: Leases  
1 Jan 2019
This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to 
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the 
underlying asset is of low value.

The recognition of additional assets and liabilities, mainly from operating leases, will increase 
Lotterywest’s total assets by $9.2M and total liabilities by $13.9M. This will have an equity 
impact of $1.6M on 1 July 2019. In addition, interest and depreciation expenses will increase, 
offset by a decrease in rental expense for the year ending 30 June 2020 and beyond.

The above assessment is based on the following accounting policy positions:

 • Option 1 of the modified retrospective approach on transition;

 • the ‘low value asset’ threshold set at AUD $5,000 (unless State Fleet);

 • Leases classified as ‘short term’ (12 months or less) are not recognised under AASB 16 
(unless State Fleet);

 • Land, buildings and investment property ROU assets are measured under the fair value 
model, subsequent to initial recognition; and

 • Discount rates are sourced from WATC.

Lotterywest will adopt the modified retrospective approach on transition to AASB 16. No 
comparative information will be restated under this approach and Lotterywest will recognise 
the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard as an adjustment to the opening 
balance of accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the date of initial application.

AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 
1 Jan 2019
This Standard clarifies and simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply to 
not for profit (NFP) entities, more closely reflecting the economic reality of NFP entity 

transactions that are not contracts with customers. Timing of income recognition is 
dependent on whether such a transaction gives rise to a liability or other performance 
obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service), or a contribution by owners, related to an 
asset (such as cash or another asset) received by an agency.

AASB 1058 will have no impact on the income recognition of Lotterywest. 

AASB 1059: Service Concession Arrangements – Grantors, and relevant amending 
standards 
1 Jan 2020
This Standard addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement (a type of 
public private partnership) by a grantor that is a public sector agency by prescribing the 
accounting for the arrangement from the grantor’s perspective. Timing and measurement for 
the recognition of a specific asset class occurs on commencement of the arrangement and 
the accounting for associated liabilities is determined by whether the grantee is paid by the 
grantor or users of the public service provided. The mandatory effective date of this Standard 
is currently 1 January 2020 after being amended by AASB 2018-5.

As Lotterywest does not manage any public private partnerships within the scope of the 
Standard it is unlikely the Standard will have any financial impact to Lotterywest.

AASB 2016-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities 
1 Jan 2019
This Standard inserts Australian requirements and authoritative implementation guidance for 
not-for-profit entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15. This guidance assists not-for-profit entities in 
applying those Standards to particular transactions and other events. 

There is no financial impact to Lotterywest.

AASB 2018-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of 
Material 
1 Jan 2020
This Standard clarifies the definition of material and its application by improving the wording 
and aligning the definition across AASB Standards and other publications. 

There is no financial impact to Lotterywest.

AASB 2018-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Right-of-Use Assets 
of Not-for-Profit Entities 
1 Jan 2019
This Standard provides a temporary option for not for profit entities to not apply the fair value 
initial measurement requirements for right-of-use assets arising under leases with significantly 
below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the entity to further its objectives.

Lotterywest has not entered into any peppercorn leases as a lessee and therefore it is 
unlikely there will be any financial impact to Lotterywest
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9.4 Services received free of charge 

2019
$000

2018
$000

Services provided by the State Solicitor’s Office 58 45

Assets and resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that Lotterywest would 
otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets 
or services where they can be reliaby measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for 
services received.

Where assets and services received from other State Government agencies they are disclosed 
separately under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

9.5 Services provided free of charge 
During the reporting period, Lotterywest provided services free of charge to:

2019
$000

2018
$000

Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 
(Healthway)

353 -

9.6 Remuneration of auditors
The total fees to the Auditor General for statutory audits are as follows:

2019
$000

2018
$000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and 
performance indicators

129 127

9.7 Compensation of key management personnel
The Commission has determined that Key Management Personnel include State Government 
Ministers, our Minister, the WA Premier (current), Lotterywest’s Board members, CEO and 
Senior Executive Services (SES) designated Senior Officers. However, the Commission is 
not obligated to compensate Ministers and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers’ 
compensation may be found in the Annual Report on State Finances.

Compensation of members of the accountable authority

Compensation band ($)  2019  
No.

 2018
No.

0- 10,000 1 -
10,001 - 20,000 - 4
20,001 - 30,000 1 -
30,001 - 40,000 5 3
40,001 - 50,000 1 -
60,001 - 70,000 - 1

8 8

2019
$000

2018
$000

Short term employee benefits 222 242
Post employment benefits 27 -
Other long term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -

Total compensation of members of the accountable authority 249 242

Compensation of senior officers 

Compensation band ($)
 2019 

No.
 2018 

No.

40,001 - 50,000(a) 1 -
90,001 - 100,000(a) 1 -
170,001 - 180,000 - 1
190,001 - 200,000 2 1
200,001 - 210,000 1 1
210,001 - 220,000 - 2
220,001-230,000 1 -
300,001 - 310,000 - 1
320,001 - 330,000 1 1

7 7
(a) Senior officers employed for only part of the 2018-19 financial year.

2019
$000

2018
$000

Short term employee benefits 805 1,400
Post employment benefits 361 -
Other long term benefits 118 33
Termination benefits - 195
Total compensation of senior officers 1,284 1,628
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9.8 Related party transactions
Lotterywest is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Western Australia. In 
conducting its activities, Lotterywest is required to pay various taxes and levies based on the 
standard terms and condition that apply to all tax and levy payers to the State and entities 
related to the State.

Related parties of Lotterywest include:

 • All Ministers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled 
entities;

 • All senior officers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled 
entities;

 • Other departments and public sector entities, including related bodies included in the 
whole of government consolidated financial statement;

 • Associates and joint ventures, that are included in the whole of government consolidated 
financial statement; and

 • The Government Employee Superannuation Board (GESB).

Significant transactions with government related entities:

 • Services received free of charge (Note 9.4);

 • Services provided free of charge to other government agencies (Note 9.5);

 • Vehicle lease rental payments to the Department of Finance during the year 30 June 2019 
was $0.08 million (2018: $0.19 million);

 • Lease payments to the Department of Finance (Note 6.3);

 • Insurance payments to RiskCover fund during the year 30 June 2019 was $0.25 million 
(2018: $0.34 million);

 • Service Level Arrangement with Healthway (Note 3.3);

 • Grants provided to Hospital, Sports, and Arts (Note 4.2);

 • Grants from State Government (Note 3.5); and

 • Remuneration for services provided by the Auditor General (Note 9.6).

Material transactions with other related parties

 • Superannuation payment to GESB during the year 30 June 2019 was $3.28 million (2018: 
$3.56 million).

Outside of general citizen type transactions, there were no material related party transactions 
with Key Management Personnel or their close family members or their controlled or jointly 
controlled entities for the year ended to 30 June 2019. 

9.9 Related and affiliated bodies
Section 26 (1) of the Act requires details of all grants recipients to be listed separately, 
including grants provided to any affiliated bodies.  There were no related and/or affiliated 
bodies requiring disclosure for the year. A full list of grants approved is disclosed in the 
Annual Report.

9.10 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
There has been no event subsequent to the end of the reporting period which would have a 
material effect on Lotterywest’s financial statements at 30 June 2019.

9.11 Supplementary financial information

Write-offs 2019
$000

2018
$000

Play online transactions written-off 17 4 
Portable attractive assets 1 11

17 15

Gifts of public property 2019
$000

2018
$000

Gifts of public property provided to not for profit 
organisations (a) 2 -

2 -

During the year a significant number of items of plant, furniture and equipment, art and 
other portable items that were surplus to Lotterywest’s requirements and had little to no 
economic benefit to Lotterywest were disposed in accordance with State Supply Commission 
guidelines by transferring to not for profit organisations at no cost.

9.12 Explanatory statement
The following tables provide details of significant variations between actual revenues and 
expenditures for the financial year compared with the corresponding items for the preceding 
year and the corresponding items in the budget. Significant variations are considered to be 
those where the amount is deemed as being in excess of 5% and $1 million.
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Significant variations  
Between actual and estimates (original budget) of revenues and expenditures for 2019

2019 
Actual 

$000

2019 
Budget 

$000

Variance 
$000

Revenue
Sales 985,251 873,535 111,716 (a)

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 555,079 491,919 63,160 
Printing costs 3,279 3,687 (408)
Retailers’ commission 71,198 66,572 4,626 
Goods and Services Tax 39,217 34,850 4,367 
Total Cost of sales 668,773 597,028 71,745 (b)

Trading profit 316,478 276,507 39,971 

Other revenue
Interest 9,784 7,750 2,034 (c)
Other 14,224 12,882 1,342 (d)
Total other revenue 24,008 20,632 3,376 

Gains
Gains on disposal of non-current assets (4) - (4)
Other gains 600 - 600 
Total gains 596 - 596 

Expenses
Lotteries operations 54,659 67,998 (13,339)
Grants and community  
development operations 14,558 12,247 2,311 

Total operating expenses 69,217 80,245 (11,028) (e)
Profit from operating activities 271,865 216,894 54,971 

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants (net of grants not taken up) 99,995 100,000 (5)
State Pool Account 143,690 127,678 (16,012)
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 35,922 31,918 4,004

 Total returns to beneficiaries 279,607 259,596 20,011 (f )

GST reimbursement for gaming margin 39,217 34,850 4,367 (g)
Net profit/(loss) 31,475 (7,852) 39,327 

(a) Sales
Sales revenue is $111.7 million (13%) higher than originally budgeted primarily due to Powerball 
game changes, price increases and higher than expected jackpot events.

(b) Cost of sales
Prize allocations, commissions, and Goods and Services Tax are higher than originally 
budgeted as they are directly linked to higher sales.

(c) Interest
Interest earnings increased $2.0 million (26%) due to higher levels of investment funds arising 
from higher sales. 

(d) Other 
Other revenue increased by $1.3 million (10%) over the original budget due to higher forfeited 
prizes, and new revenue derived from the recovery of costs arising on the Service Level 
Arrangement with Healthway.  

(e) Total expenses from lottery activities
Total expenses are $11.1 million (14%) below budget mainly due to reduced expenditure in 
Advertising, Service and Contracts and a lower number of retailer shop fit-outs and signage 
installations completed. 

(f) Total returns to beneficiaries
Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to 
section 22 of the Act and is directly linked to the level of sales recorded. Total Statutory Grants 
increased $20.0 million (13%) higher than originally budgeted due to higher sales.

The Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 19 and 24 of the Act and were on 
budget.

(g) GST reimbursement for gaming margin
GST reimbursement for gaming margin is reimbursed based on the gaming margin, 
which is proportionate to the increase in sales. The higher sales resulted in increased GST 
reimbursement.
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Significant variations  
Actual revenues and expenditures for 2019 and 2018

2019 
Actual 

$000

2018 
Actual 

$000

Variance 
$000

Revenue
Sales 985,251 854,564 130,687 (a)

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 555,079 482,507 72,572 
Printing costs 3,279 3,161 118 
Retailers’ commission 71,198 63,222 7,976 
Goods and Services Tax 39,217 33,622 5,595 
Total Cost of sales 668,773 582,512 86,261 (b)

Trading profit 316,478 272,052 44,426 

Other revenue
Interest 9,784 8,095 1,689 (c)
Forfeited prizes 8,314 5,371 2,943 (d)
Retailer fees 4,667 4,203 464 
Service Level Arrangment - Healthway 1,116 - 1,116 (e)
Player registration service fee - 11 (11)
Other 127 65 62 
Total other revenue from lottery activities 24,008 17,745 6,263

Gains
Gains on disposal of non-current assets (4) (119) 115 
Other gains 600 1,731 (1,131) (f )
Total gains 596 1,612 (1,016)

Expenses
Lotteries operations 54,659 61,733 (7,074)
Grants and community development 
operations 14,558 12,385 2,173 

Total operating expenses 69,217 74,118 (4,901) (g)
Profit from operating activities 271,865 217,291 54,574 

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants (net of grants not taken up) 99,995 99,994 1 
State Pool Account 143,690 124,633 19,057 
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 35,922 31,158 4,764 

 Total returns to beneficiaries 279,607 255,785 23,822 (h)
GST reimbursement for gaming margin 39,217 33,622 5,595 (i)

Net profit/(loss) 31,475 (4,872) 36,347 

(a) Sales
Sales revenue was $130.7 million (15%) higher than the previous year primarily due to 
changes in Powerball, pricing increases and higher than expected jackpot events.

(b) Cost of sales
Cost of Sales increased higher than the previous year in direct correlation to the increase in 
lottery sales. 

(c) Interest
Interest revenue was $1.7 million (21%) higher on last year due to increased investment funds 
from higher sales. 

(d) Forfeited prizes
Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players who do not claim their prize 
within 12 months forfeit the prize.  Forfeited prizes were higher than last year reflecting the 
increased lottery sales.  

(e) Service Level Arrangement – Healthway 
As the Service Level Arrangement with Healthway commenced 1 January 2019, the revenue 
representing cost recovery for services performed by Lotterywest was higher than the 
previous year.  

(f) Gains
Despite recognising the settlement this year of a dispute regarding the signage and shopfit 
components of Lotterywest’s Retail Transformation Project, these gains were lower than the 
previous year’s settlement regarding the gaming system component of the project.

(g) Total expenses from lottery activities
Expenses were $5.0 million (7%) lower than the previous year mainly due to lower salary & 
wages (due to significant termination payments in the previous year), lower depreciation (due 
to assets being fully depreciated and lower than expected new assets created) and lower 
advertising charges. 

(h) Total returns to beneficiaries
Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to 
section 22 of the Act and is directly linked to the increased level of sales. Total Statutory 
Grants increased $23.8 million (15%) due to higher sales.

Total Direct Grants were consistent with the prior year and distributed according to sections 
19 and 24 of the Act.

(i) GST reimbursement for gaming margin
GST reimbursement for gaming margin is reimbursed based on the gaming margin, 
which is proportionate to the increase in sales. The higher sales resulted in increased GST 
reimbursement.
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Significant variations 
Operating budget
In accordance with the Treasurer’s Instruction 953, this statement shows the 2019-20 Budget 
estimate for the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This statement is not subject to audit.

2020 Budget 
$000

2019 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

Revenue
Sales 892,612 985,251 (92,639) (a)

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 503,969 555,079 (51,110)
Printing costs 3,817 3,279 538 
Retailers’ commission 65,696 71,198 (5,502)
Goods and Services Tax 35,606 39,217 (3,611)
Total cost of sales 609,088 668,773 (59,685) (b)

Trading profit 283,524 316,478 (32,954)

Other revenue
Interest 7,750 9,784 (2,034) (c)
Forfeited prizes 7,705 8,314 (609)
Retailer fees 4,704 4,667 37 
Healthway reimbursement 2,691 1,116 1,575 (d)
Other - 127 (127)
Total revenues from lottery activities 22,850 24,008 (1,158)

Gains
Gains on disposal of non-current assets - (4) 4 
Other gains - 600 (600)
Total gains - 596 (596)

Expenses
Lotteries operations 70,266 54,659 15,607 
Grants and community development operations 14,418 14,558 (140)
Total expenses from lottery activities 84,684 69,217 15,467 (e)

Profit from operating activities 221,690 271,865 (50,175)

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants (net of grants not taken up) 100,000 99,995 5 
State Pool Account 130,917 143,690 (12,773)
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 32,730 35,922 (3,192)
Total returns to beneficiaries 263,647 279,607 (15,960) (f )

GST reimbursement for gaming margin 35,606 39,217 (3,611) (g)
Net profit/(loss) (6,351) 31,475 (37,826)

Notes to the budget
Lotterywest’s 2019-20 Budget meets the operational and financial objectives, as well as the 
long term strategies approved in Lotterywest’s Strategic Development Plan.  

(a) The lottery sales budget of $892.6 million represents a decrease of $92.7 million (10%) on 
actual 2018-19 lottery sales reflecting the return to normal predicted lottery sales levels. 

(b) Total budget cost of sales is $59.7 million lower than 2018-19 results and is line with the 
proportional (10%) reduction in forecast lottery sales. 

(c) Interest revenue is budgeted lower due to lower anticipated levels of investment funds 
held and materially lower interest rates.

(d) Healthway reimbursement is budgeted to be higher reflecting a full 12 months of service 
provision cost recovery.

(e) Total 2019-20 operational expense budget of $84.7 million represents an increase of $12.2 
million (17%) from actual 2018-19 expenses with the main variances being:

 • Increase in service and contracts - $5.6 million reflecting strategic initiatives

 • Increase in salary and wages - $2.8 million reflecting full Healthway SLA

 • Increase in right of use assets - $1.6 million reflecting new lease standards

 • Increase in IT systems - $0.2 million 

 • Decrease in retail distribution - $2.8 million

 • Decrease in accommodation - $1.4 million

 • Decrease in depreciation and amortisation - $1.3 million

 • Decrease in advertising - $0.3 million

(f ) The community funding budget for 2019-20 of $263.6 million reflects a decrease of $16.0 
million (6%) against the 2018-19 actual grants paid due to the record high statutory grants 
paid in 2018-19 following a record lottery sales year. More subdued lottery sales are 
budgeted for 2019-20 which results in a lower statutory grant budget.

(g) GST reimbursement for gaming margin is budgeted $3.6 million lower based on lower 
forecast lottery sales gaming margin.
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Grants approved to  
the WA community
Date range: 01.07.2018 - 30.06.2019

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 "N" Class Destroyers Association Western Australian Branch(Inc) $3,278

 ABC Foundation Ltd. $1,071,276

 Aboriginal Health Council of Western Australia $348,010

 Aboriginal Male's Healing Centre Strong Spirit Strong Families Strong Culture 
Incorporated

$8,340

 ADHD Western Australia Incorporated $4,914

 ADHD Western Australia Incorporated $21,980

 Agencies for South West Accommodation Inc. $60,000

 Albany Light Opera and Theatre Company (Inc) $15,000

 Alternative Technology Association Inc. $11,100

 Amanda Young Foundation Ltd $200,910

 AMMPT Western Region (Inc.) $14,000

 Angelhands Inc. $350,000

 Anzac Terrace Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated $5,910

 Ardyaloon Incorporated $140,000

 Arthritis Foundation of W.A. Incorporated $38,145

 Artrinsic Inc. $20,000

 Arts Margaret River Incorporated $25,000

 Arts Margaret River Incorporated $66,500

 Association of the Liberian Community of Australia in Western Australia  
(ALCA-WA) Incorporated

$3,985

 Astronomical Society of the South West (Incorporated) $15,000

 Augusta Community Resource Centre (Inc.) $4,335

 Augusta Historical Society (Incorporated) $8,680

 Augusta River Festival (Inc) $15,000

 Australian Arab Association Incorporated $25,000

 Australian Association for Environmental Education W.A. Chapter Inc $54,897

 Australian Breastfeeding Association - WA Branch $30,844

 Australian Council on Smoking and Health $11,700

 Australian Garden History Society Inc - WA Branch $10,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Australian Irish Heritage Association of Western Australia(Incorporated) $8,000

 Australian Jordanian Friendship Association Inc. $10,486

 Australian Red Cross WA Division - Lady Lawley Cottage $106,700

 Australian-Asian Association of Western Australia (Incorporated) $60,126

 Autism Association of Western Australia (Inc) $2,100,000

 Autism West Support Incorporated $22,343

 Autism West Support Incorporated $34,845

 Avon Valley Arts Society (Inc) $14,754

 Avon Valley Bridge Club (Inc.) $2,247

 Avon Youth Community and Family Services Incorporated $10,000

 Aweil Community Association in Western Australia (ACAWA) Inc. $5,000

 Bangladesh Australia Association of Western Australia Incorporated $14,633

 Barking Gecko Theatre Company Ltd. $40,000

 Batavia Coast Maritime Heritage Assoc Inc $75,393

 Bayswater Historical Society Incorporated $12,040

 Beeliar Community Voice Inc. $8,000

 Befriend Inc $66,015

 Bega Garnbirringu Health Services Incorporated $3,500,000

 Bencubbin Community Recreation Council $29,295

 Big Hart Inc. $325,000

 Bindoon and Districts Agricultural Society Inc $11,000

 Binningup Community Association Incorporated $15,000

 BirdLife Australia Ltd. - BirdLife Western Australia $576,529

 Blackwood Environment Society (Inc) $17,758

 Bloodwood Tree Association Incorporated $4,000

 Blue Sky Community Group Inc. $15,000

 Boab Festival at Derby $23,500

 Bonsai Society of Western Australia Incorporated $4,500

 Breakaway Aboriginal Corporation $33,060

 Bridgetown Family and Community Centre Incorporated $170,000

 Bridgetown Greenbushes Business and Tourism Association Inc $14,000

 Bridgetown High School Emergency Services Cadets $8,621

 Bridgetown Repertory Club (Inc) $5,526

 Brightwater Care Group Limited $224,776

 Bringing Them Home WA Incorporated $310,000

 Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange $23,000
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Broome Lotteries House Incorporated $62,802

 Broome Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets $14,000

 Broome Youth and Families Hub Incorporated $23,768

 Budadee Aboriginal Corporation $104,714

 Buddha's Light International Association Western AustraliaIncorporated $8,000

 Bunbury Multicultural Group Incorporated $20,000

 Bunbury Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated $3,000

 Bunbury Regional Theatre Incorporated $125,000

 Burekup Bush Fire Brigade $1,000

 Busselton Allsports Inc. $20,000

 Busselton Hospice Care Inc. $18,509

 Busselton Jetty Inc. $200,000

 Busselton Naturalists' Club (Inc.) $1,400

 Busselton Pottery Group Incorporated $6,500

 Busselton Toy Library Inc. $6,357

 Byford Community Kindergarten Association Inc $12,551

 Camp Quality Limited $70,400

 Cancer Wellness Centre Incorporated $266,855

 Canning Agricultural Horticultural and Recreational Society (Inc.) $20,000

 Canning Mens' Shed Inc. $6,000

 Canning Vale Prekindy Inc $9,500

 Cape Mountain Bikers Incorporated $12,000

 Carers Association of Western Australia Incorporated $30,000

 Castellorizian Association of Western Australia $40,000

 Catholic Education Commission of Western Australia Trustees Incorporated $16,250

 Centacare Kimberley Association Inc $66,550

 Centre for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc $50,000

 Centrecare Incorporated $122,730

 Centrepoint Church Incorporated $15,000

 Child Inclusive Learning and Development Australia Inc $75,682

 Children's Leukaemia and Cancer Research Foundation Inc $10,000

 Chung Wah Association $20,000

 Chung Wah Association $58,989

 Church of Christ Kalgoorlie $3,150

 Citizens Advice Bureau of Western Australia Incorporated $30,800

 City of Albany $50,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 City of Albany $55,000

 City of Albany $950,000

 City of Albany Band Incorporated $15,000

 City of Armadale $35,000

 City of Belmont $40,000

 City of Bunbury $30,000

 City of Bunbury $599,421

 City of Busselton $350,000

 City of Cockburn $50,000

 City of Fremantle $45,500

 City of Fremantle $45,500

 City of Greater Geraldton $25,000

 City of Greater Geraldton - Queens Park Theatre $66,556

 City of Greater Geraldton - Queens Park Theatre $70,000

 City of Joondalup $719,266

 City of Joondalup $135,000

 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder $20,000

 City of Karratha $1,458,974

 City of Kwinana $20,000

 City of Mandurah $20,000

 City of Mandurah $99,000

 City of Mandurah $200,000

 City of Melville $20,000

 City of Melville - Citizens Relief Fund $18,000

 City of Nedlands $20,000

 City of Perth $550,000

 City of Rockingham $20,000

 City of South Perth $295,000

 City of Stirling - Stirling Women's Centre $22,000

 City of Swan $20,000

 City West Lotteries House Inc $635,360

 Claisebrook Lotteries House Association Incorporated $50,818

 Claremont Concert Band Incorporated $3,000

 Club Fiumano E Giuliano $50,238

 Coastal Scottish Pipe Band WA Inc. $10,630

 Cockburn Toy Library Incorporated $15,000
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Collie Family Centre Incorporated $7,869

 Collie Family Centre Incorporated $17,485

 Collie Gallery Group Inc $40,712

 Comfort Quilts Against Cancer Inc $30,000

 Communicare (Inc.) $753,198

 Community Legal Centres Association (Western Australia) Incorporated $513,810

 ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc $107,955

 Conservation Council of Western Australia $128,883

 Consular Corps of Western Australia Inc $20,000

 Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc $15,000

 Corrigin Toy Library $3,000

 Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Incorporated $77,000

 Country Arts (WA) Inc $142,185

 Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Incorporated $21,130

 Cranbrook Tourist and Business Promotion Group $5,228

 Cue Community Resource Centre Inc. $66,160

 Curtin University Student Guild $10,000

 Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc) $190,933

 Dalwallinu Community Resource Centre Incorporated $4,228

 Darlington Arts Festival Association Inc $24,000

 Darlington Sports and Recreation Association (WA) Incorporated $3,370

 Deafness Council Western Australia Incorporated $22,709

 Dementia Communication Resource Designs: Div of Multicultural Expression for 
Kids Inc.

$10,066

 Denmark Arts Council $40,000

 Denmark Historical Society (Incorporated) $6,716

 Denmark Surf Life Saving Club (Inc.) $1,500,000

 Diabetes WA Ltd. $35,711

 Diabetes WA Ltd. $39,916

 Dianella Secondary College Education Support Centre - BushRanger Cadets $15,000

 Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc. $13,150

 Donnybrook Apple Festival Inc. $15,000

 Dumbleyung Events Committee Inc $9,605

 Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Incorporated $14,000

 Dyslexia - Speld Foundation WA (Inc) $200,000

 East Pilbara Independence Support Inc $33,766

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council $180,000

 Eaton Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated $2,290

 Eaton Toy Library $3,000

 Edith Cowan University Development and Alumni $91,800

 Edmund Rice Centre WA Inc. $10,577

 El Shaddai Kwinana Christian Fellowship Inc $18,000

 Ellenbrook Community Collective Incorporated $20,000

 Ellenbrook Playgroup Inc $4,400

 Embroiderers Guild of Western Australia $9,314

 Environs Kimberley Incorporated $557,564

 Esperance Crisis Accommodation Service Inc. $62,859

 Esperance Lotteries House Association Inc. $15,806

 Esperance Toy Library Incorporated $3,000

 Exmouth Toy Library Incorporated $7,500

 Fairbridge Western Australia (Inc.) $145,000

 FAWNA Incorporated $16,000

 Federation of Western Australian Police and Community Youth Centres (Inc) $241,560

 Feed the Little Children Inc. $133,400

 Fellowship of Australian Writers (Western Australian Section) $12,919

 Fenians, Fremantle and Freedom Incorporated $18,486

 Festival of Busselton Incorporated $15,000

 Financial Counsellors Association of Western Australia $602,000

 Financial Counsellors Association of Western Australia $120,000

 Fitzgerald Biosphere Group Inc $4,361

 Foothills Information and Referral Service Incorporated $60,000

 FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc $289,800

 Foster Care Association of Western Australia $175,550

 Foster Families South West Inc $10,150

 Fremantle Arts Centre Press $3,532

 Fremantle Foundation Ltd acting as Trustee for Fremantle Foundation Trust $33,647

 Fremantle Volunteer Heritage Guides Association Inc $98,000

 Friends of Edenvale (Inc) $3,121

 Friends of Kings Park (Inc.) $100,000

 Furqan Islamic Association of Western Australia Inc $20,000

 Furqan Islamic Association of Western Australia Inc $12,000

 Gem Camera Club Incorporated $3,000
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Geraldton Greenough Sunshine Festival (Inc.) $15,000

 Gilbert and Sullivan Society of Western Australia (Inc) $1,000

 Gilbert and Sullivan Society of Western Australia (Inc) $15,000

 Gingin Men's Shed Inc. $43,500

 Girl Guides Western Australia Inc $130,445

 Girl Guides Western Australia Inc $46,258

 Glass Jar Australia Limited $999,200

 Globalheart Church Inc. $15,000

 Gnowangerup Community Resource Centre (Inc.) $4,667

 Goldfields Regional Toy Library Incorporated $5,244

 Goomalling Gumnuts Inc $6,317

 Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc) $80,000

 Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc) $5,168

 Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc) $102,720

 Gosnells Community Lotteries House Inc $105,818

 Gosnells Toy Library (Inc) $4,000

 Gosnells Women's Health Service Incorporated $50,700

 GP Down South Limited $350,000

 Grand Lodge of WA of Antient Free and Accepted Masons Incorporated - 
Toodyay Masonic Lodge No 37 WAC

$6,000

 Green Skills Inc. $28,296

 Green Skills Inc. $20,000

 Greenbushes Community Resource Centre Incorporated $5,370

 Guildford Association Incorporated $4,500

 Gujarati Samaj of Western Australia (Inc.) $4,500

 Gwelup Community Corner Incorporated $4,359

 Hampton Senior High School Bush Ranger Cadet Unit $10,454

 Harvest Lakes Residents' Association Incorporated $9,461

 Harvey Mainstreet (Inc.) $20,000

 Health Consumers Council (WA) Inc. $20,264

 Hilton Harvest Community Garden Incorporated $6,815

 Hindi Samaj of Western Australia Incorporated $7,081

 Hopetoun Men In Sheds Incorporated $21,818

 Hopetoun Progress Association (Inc) $11,000

 Humpty Dumpty Toy Library Inc. $9,500

 Huntington's WA (Inc) $10,500

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 ICEA Ltd $20,000

 In Town Centre Incorporated $15,000

 Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc. $2,291,858

 Indian Society of Western Australia $20,000

 Indigo Junction Incorporated $40,000

 Institute of Foresters of Australia $13,500

 Investing In Our Youth Inc $21,915

 Iranian Association Inc $8,700

 Ishar Multicultural Women's Health Centre Inc. $59,500

 Ishar Multicultural Women's Health Centre Inc. $70,000

 Japan Festival Inc. $15,000

 Jarlmadangah Burru Aboriginal Corporation $25,599

 Jewish Care WA (Inc) $20,000

 Joondalup Christmas Lunch $14,136

 Kalamunda and Districts Agricultural Society Incorporated $10,000

 Kalamunda Men's Shed Inc $298,728

 Kalgoorlie-Boulder Community Fair Society $20,000

 Kalgoorlie-Boulder Lotteries House Association Inc. $155,352

 Kanyana Wildlife Rehabilitation Centre Inc. $10,500

 Katanning Agricultural Society Incorporated $10,000

 Katanning Agricultural Society Incorporated $15,000

 Katanning Regional Business Association Incorporated $12,000

 Katanning Toy Library Incorporated $9,500

 Katharine Susannah Prichard Foundation Inc. $30,507

 Kellerberrin Community Men's Shed Inc. $30,200

 Kendenup Community Grounds (Inc) $13,000

 Kids' Camps Inc. $65,000

 Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Limited $2,920,185

 Kimberley Community Legal Service Inc $9,765

 Kingsley Community Carols Festival $5,920

 Kojonup Occasional Care Centre Inc $27,116

 Kondinin Artists Group Inc. $3,590

 Kunawarritji (Aboriginal Corporation) $69,952

 Kununurra Neighbourhood House Incorporated $25,000

 Lake Grace Community Men's Shed Inc. $3,680

 Lakelands Village Social Club $7,313
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Law Access Limited $25,704

 Leading Age Services Australia Limited $20,000

 Leading Youth Forward Incorporated $39,462

 Leederville Connect Inc $25,000

 Leederville Toy Library Incorporated $2,000

 Life City Church Perth Inc $17,250

 Lifestyle Solutions (Aust) Ltd $44,344

 Lingalonga Early Years Learning Centre Incorporated $13,095

 Linkwest Incorporated $154,590

 Lions Cancer Institute Incorporated $125,000

 Lions Club of Katanning $5,000

 Lions Club of Manjimup $3,500

 Lions Club of Serpentine-Jarrahdale $7,709

 Lions Club of Serpentine-Jarrahdale $10,000

 Literature Centre Inc. $10,390

 Living Stone Foundation Inc $99,443

 Local Drug Action Groups Incorporated $144,000

 Lucy Saw Centre Association $50,000

 Malayali Association of Perth Incorporated $6,070

 Malayali Association of Perth Incorporated $18,284

 Maltese Association of Western Australia Incorporated $15,000

 Mandurah Wildlife Rescue Inc $58,714

 Mangkaja Arts Resource Agency Aboriginal Corporation $331,350

 Marangaroo Family Centre Inc $8,000

 Margaret River Busselton Tourism Association Inc $24,471

 Margaret River Community Centre Inc. $8,000

 Maritime Archaeological Association of Western Australia (Inc.) $8,000

 Marmion-Warwick Playgroup Inc $5,000

 Maroo Wildlife Refuge Inc $15,000

 Mawarnkarra Health Service $378,686

 Meerilinga Young Children's Foundation Inc $128,980

 Melville City Toy Library Association $10,000

 Meningitis Centre Australia Inc $50,000

 Men's Sheds of WA Inc. $18,000

 Mid West Community Living Association Inc $2,447

 Mid West Community Living Association Inc $82,730

 Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc. $50,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Midway Community Care $25,000

 Midwest Multicultural Association (WA) Incorporated $6,842

 Midwest Multicultural Association (WA) Incorporated $9,942

 Mission Australia $51,204

 Mission Australia $86,187

 Moore Catchment Council (Inc) $7,754

 Motor Museum of Western Australia Pty Ltd acting as Trustee for the Motor 
Museum of Western Australia Trust

$60,792

 MOTTWA Inc. $860,000

 Mount Helena Residents and Ratepayers Progress AssociationIncorporated $10,862

 Mowanjum Aboriginal Corporation $90,399

 Mowanjum Aboriginal Corporation $44,760

 Mowanjum Artists Spirit Of The Wandjina Aboriginal Corporation $22,000

 Mt Hawthorn Hub Incorporated $20,000

 Mt Marshall & Districts Agricultural Society (Inc.) $8,905

 Mullewa Community Resource Centre $3,000

 Mullewa District Agricultural Society $6,431

 Multicultural Futures Inc. $39,750

 Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Incorporated $217,238

 Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated) $177,968

 Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated) $35,710

 Mundaring in Transition Incorporated $9,574

 Murchison Region Aboriginal Corporation $16,000

 Museum of Freedom and Tolerance - Western Australia Limited $15,000

 Museums Australia Incorporated $301,655

 Museums Australia Incorporated $75,300

 My Place Foundation (Inc.) $10,000

 NAIDOC Perth Incorporated $30,000

 Nannup Garden Village Inc $16,000

 Nannup Men's Shed Inc $95,000

 Nardine Wimmins Refuge $55,000

 Narrogin Agricultural Society Incorporated $15,000

 Narrogin Art Group (Inc.) $6,416
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western 
Australia

$25,284

 National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western 
Australia

$860,300

 National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western 
Australia

$108,412

 Nations Church Incorporated $15,000

 Nature Play WA Inc. $130,720

 Nepali Association of Western Australia (NAWA) Incorporated $6,619

 New Life Welfare (W.A.) Incorporated $35,000

 New Life Welfare (W.A.) Incorporated $35,000

 Newman Visitors Centre Inc $19,827

 Newman Women's Shelter Inc. $18,000

 Newman Women's Shelter Inc. $35,994

 Newton Moore Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets $10,900

 Ngaanyatjarra Health Service (Aboriginal Corporation) $57,591

 Ngaanyatjarra Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara Women's Council Aboriginal 
Corporation

$2,460,397

 Ngnowar-Aerwah Aboriginal Corporation $36,800

 Nintirri Centre (Incorporated) $116,113

 Nintirri Centre (Incorporated) $60,000

 Nornalup Residents & Ratepayers Association Incorporated $6,000

 North Perth Business and Community Association Inc. $4,000

 Northam Heritage Forum (Inc) $4,334

 Northampton District Agricultural Society Incorporated $4,970

 Northampton District Agricultural Society Incorporated $5,000

 Northampton Old School Community Initiative Incorporated $24,290

 Northcliffe Pioneer Museum Incorporated $1,904

 Northern Compassion Inc. $35,181

 Oceans Church Inc. $46,286

 Orana House (Inc) $20,000

 Ord Valley Events Inc $20,000

 Organisation of African Community of Western Australia Inc $20,000

 Otitis Media Group Inc. $12,520

 Oz Harvest Limited $9,965

 Palliative Care W.A. Incorporated $243,756

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Pat Thomas House Inc $22,897

 Pat Thomas House Inc $30,000

 Peel Multicultural Association, Inc $3,363

 Peel Youth Services Incorporated $14,256

 Pemberton Visitor Centre Inc $4,100

 People Who Care (Inc.) $34,000

 People With Disabilities (W.A.) $58,000

 Performing Arts Centre Society (Incorporated.) $9,551

 Perth Asian Community Centre $5,137

 Perth City Farm Incorporated $40,000

 Perth City Farm Incorporated $13,644

 Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc $20,000

 Perth International Arts Festival Ltd $7,000,000

 Perth International Arts Festival Ltd $700,000

 Perth International Jazz Festival Inc. $85,000

 Perth Observatory Volunteer Group Incorporated $958,890

 Pinjarra Community Garden Incorporated $90,000

 Pioneer Lodge "Northampton" Inc $15,942

 Pivot Support Services Incorporated $7,500

 Plantagenet Mens Shed Incorporated $47,285

 Pollinators Inc $4,195

 PortCare Incorporated $30,000

 Possum Valley Animal Sanctuary Inc $25,664

 Pregnancy Assistance (Incorporated) $14,100

 Probus Club of Woodlands Inc. $1,338

 Project PAX for Veterans of Western Australia Inc $10,661

 Propel Youth Arts WA Incorporated $35,000

 Quairading Agricultural Society Inc. $5,000

 Ravensthorpe Historical Society (Inc.) $10,000

 Ravensthorpe Regional Arts Council $8,372

 Rebound WA Inc. $130,000

 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated $4,600,000

 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated $814,802

 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - 
Northampton

$25,000
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia Brigadoon Centre 
Incorporated

$3,231

 Rise Network Inc $376,845

 Riverview Community Services Inc. $90,000

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - St Joseph's Parish Northam $10,000

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - The Shopfront $15,000

 Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - Centacare Family Services $55,000

 Rotary Club of Applecross Inc. $14,000

 Rotary Club of Applecross Inc. $14,000

 Rotary Club of Esperance Bay (Inc) $5,500

 Rotary Club of North Perth (Inc) $20,000

 Rotary Club of Willetton (Inc) $7,439

 Rotary International District 9455 Inc $9,600

 Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association, Incorporated $12,000

 Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia (Western Operations) $6,500,000

 Royal Life Saving Society - Western Australia Inc $245,000

 Royal Life Saving Society - Western Australia Inc $215,214

 Royal Western Australian Historical Society Incorporated $14,400

 Ruah Community Services $526,471

 Ruah Community Services $234,453

 Safe Farms WA Inc. $6,500

 Salvation Army (WA) Property Trust $250,000

 Sanctuary Church Inc. $13,200

 Saraswati Mahavidyalaya Institute Incorporated $22,000

 Scarborough Beach Association (Inc) $15,000

 School Volunteer Program Ltd $44,180

 Screenwest (Australia) Limited $7,000,000

 Screenwest (Australia) Limited $700,000

 Sculpture By The Sea Incorporated $150,618

 Seaview Community Kindergarten Inc $8,200

 Second Harvest Australia Inc $80,500

 Seniors' Recreation Council of WA (Inc) $35,000

 Senses Australia $670,000

 Sensorium Theatre Incorporated $25,400

 Serbian Community Centre of W.A. (Inc.) $58,127

 Shelter WA Inc $63,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Shinju Matsuri Inc. $40,000

 Shire of Broome $20,000

 Shire of Broome $1,714,678

 Shire of Capel $21,000

 Shire of Carnamah $76,300

 Shire of Carnarvon $90,350

 Shire of Chittering $10,000

 Shire of Cranbrook $3,100

 Shire of Dandaragan $7,500

 Shire of Dardanup $82,300

 Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup $9,500

 Shire of Dowerin $10,000

 Shire of East Pilbara $22,000

 Shire of Esperance $550,000

 Shire of Harvey $119,701

 Shire of Kondinin $61,311

 Shire of Leonora $35,000

 Shire of Meekatharra $200,000

 Shire of Meekatharra $500,000

 Shire of Meekatharra $20,000

 Shire of Meekatharra $20,000

 Shire of Merredin $27,426

 Shire of Merredin - Cummins Theatre $80,000

 Shire of Moora - Moora Performing Arts Centre $50,500

 Shire of Morawa $80,000

 Shire of Mount Magnet $35,000

 Shire of Mundaring $8,000

 Shire of Murray $20,000

 Shire of Murray $500,000

 Shire of Nannup $133,000

 Shire of Narembeen $80,814

 Shire of Narrogin $14,750

 Shire of Peppermint Grove $10,000

 Shire of Ravensthorpe $125,000

 Shire of Shark Bay $45,855

 Shire of Toodyay $890,000
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Shire of Wagin $7,217

 Shire of Wongan-Ballidu $400,000

 Shire of Wyalkatchem $10,000

 Shire of Wyndham-East Kimberley $298,711

 Shire of Yalgoo $20,000

 Shire of York $56,237

 Short Term Accommodation for Youth $155,828

 Sideffect Australia Limited $89,500

 So Change Inc. $20,000

 South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre Incorporated $59,500

 South West Aboriginal Land & Sea Council Aboriginal Corporation $1,195,800

 South West Counselling Inc. $6,900

 South West Refuge Inc $33,750

 Southcare (Incorporated) $80,000

 Southern Agcare Inc. $28,250

 Southern Communities Advocacy Legal and Education Service Incorporated $37,312

 Southern Districts Bands Inc $10,810

 Southern Hills Christian College - Emergency Services Cadet Program $9,887

 Spiers Centre Inc $51,636

 Spinifex Arts Project Aboriginal Corporation $252,000

 St Barbara's Festival Incorporated $16,802

 St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited $5,000

 St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited $200,000

 St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated $1,444,000

 St. Bartholomew's House Inc $4,479

 Starick Services Inc $50,000

 Starick Services Inc $60,000

 Stirling Carols by Candlelight Inc. $8,500

 Stirling Ethnic Aged Homes Association Incorporated $9,162

 Street Law Centre WA Incorporated $12,000

 Street Law Centre WA Incorporated $5,000

 Sudbury Community House Association $114,746

 Sun City Care Incorporated $116,310

 Sun City Care Incorporated $15,000

 Superfins WA Incorporated $15,000

 Surf Life Saving Western Australia Incorporated $700,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Swan View and Districts Agricultural and Art Society $5,000

 Tammin Economy Shop Cooinda Association T.E.S.C.A. (Inc) $5,700

 Te Haupai Maori and Pacific Island Trust Association Inc. $25,000

 Teen Challenge WA Inc $16,692

 Telethon Speech and Hearing Ltd $126,702

 Tenancy WA Incorporated $25,000

 Tenth Lighthorse Bunbury Troop Inc $37,827

 Teranca Mews Residents Association $2,490

 Therapy Focus Ltd. $10,000

 Tom Price Nameless Festival (Incorporated) $22,000

 Toodyay District High School Emergency Services Cadets $15,000

 Toodyay Event Planning Inc. $15,000

 Town of Bassendean $25,000

 Town of Cambridge $30,141

 Town of Claremont $20,000

 Town of East Fremantle $19,906

 Town of Mosman Park $99,755

 Town of Mosman Park $14,500

 Tuberous Sclerosis Australia Incorporated $9,295

 Two Rocks Yanchep Assisted Cancer Travels Inc $34,000

 U3A Armadale Inc. $8,360

 U3A Mandurah Incorporated $6,000

 Uni Camp For Kids Incorporated $92,952

 United Way West Australia Inc. $36,535

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Mundijong Heritage Uniting 
Church

$6,237

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Aid $135,000

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Outreach Mandurah $60,000

 University of Western Australia $36,792

 University of Western Australia $852,923

 University of Western Australia - Centre for Social Impact $76,420

 Variety WA Incorporated $52,000

 Vasto Club - Casa DAbruzzo Incorporated $15,000

 Vic Park Collective Inc $14,998

 Victoria Park Youth Accommodation (Inc). $13,500

 Vietnam Veterans Association of Australia W.A. Branch Incorporated $1,770
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Vietnam Veterans Association of Australia W.A. Branch Incorporated $4,222

 Vietnamese Community in Australia / Western Australia Chapter Incorporated $15,000

 Vocal Ensemble Voiceworks Inc $6,809

 Volunteer Centre of Western Australia (Inc.) $244,000

 W.A. Air Training Corps Gliding Wing (Inc) $49,829

 W.A. Croatian Community Centre Inc. $12,500

 WA Bush Poets and Yarnspinners Association Inc. $3,000

 WA French Festival Inc $15,000

 Wagin Community Resource Centre Inc. $20,000

 Wagin Toy Library Incorporated $3,995

 Wandi Progress Association of Western Australia (Inc) $25,881

 Wangka Maya Pilbara Aboriginal Language Centre (AboriginalCorporation) $30,589

 Waratah Christian Community Inc $7,670

 Waratah Support Centre (South West Region) Inc $16,000

 Waringarri Arts Aboriginal Corporation $70,762

 Waroona Agricultural Society Incorporated $5,407

 Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc. $32,000

 Warren Art and Craft Group Incorporated $5,439

 WASAMBA!! Incorporated $10,000

 Welcome Lotteries House Incorporated $109,559

 West Australian Ballet Company $588,636

 West Australian Foundation for Deaf Children (Inc.) $25,000

 West Australian Men's Gathering Inc. $10,000

 West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated $60,000

 West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated $41,480

 West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd $244,700

 WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services Inc $55,000

 WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services Inc $55,000

 Western Australia Kannada Sangha Inc $7,933

 Western Australian Adult Literacy Council Incorporated $10,975

 Western Australian AIDS Council (Inc.) $7,280

 Western Australian AIDS Council (Inc.) $315,000

 Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc.) $50,000

 Western Australian Association of the Deaf Incorporated $13,096

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated $65,904

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated $185,108

Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated $200,000

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated $118,430

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated $295,801

 Western Australian Council of State School Organisations $38,795

 Western Australian Opera Company Incorporated $150,000

 Western Australian Opera Company Incorporated $250,000

 Wheelchairs For Kids Inc $2,950

 Whitelion Youth Agency Ltd $40,000

 Whitford Church of Christ (Inc) $30,000

 Wilderness Society WA Inc. $11,429

 Wilga Progress Association Incorporated $15,000

 William Langford Community House Incorporated $40,005

 William Langford Community House Incorporated $69,000

 Williams Gateway Expo (Inc) $15,000

 Wirrimanu Aboriginal Corporation $88,000

 Women and Infants Research Foundation Incorporated $150,480

 Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc. $20,986

 Women's Health Care Association $39,000

 Wongan Cubbyhouse Incorporated $29,301

 Wongan-Ballidu and District Menshed Inc $4,728

 Woodturners Association of Western Australia (Inc) $15,000

 Workpower Incorporated $7,550

 World Wide Fund for Nature Australia $2,240,700

 Writing WA Incorporated $25,680

 Wunan Foundation Inc. $2,000,000

 Wunan Foundation Inc. $35,000

 Wungening Aboriginal Corporation $40,000

 Wurreranginy Aboriginal Corporation $62,391

 Yaandina Community Services Limited $17,250

 Yindjibarndi Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC $949,600

 YMCA of Perth Youth and Community Services Inc. $20,000

 York Arts and Events Incorporated $2,894

 Youth Driver Development Program Inc $7,500

 Youth Futures WA (Inc). $300,728

 Youth Futures WA (Inc). $32,050

 Youth Involvement Council Incorporated $8,544
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Grant Customer Amount Granted

 Zig Zag Community Arts Inc. $20,000

 Zonta House Women's Refuge Inc. $57,500

Aboriginal Art Centre Hub of Western Australia Aboriginal Corporation $38,493

ACE Camera Club Inc $4,499

AGOSCI Inc. $18,000

Albany Orchid Society Inc $5,682

Badgebup Aboriginal Corporation $60,000

Baldivis Volunteer Fire and Emergency Services $8,556

Banksia Grove Playgroup $3,822

Baysie Rollers Inc. $10,000

Burrongglo Aboriginal Corporation $14,920

Claremont/Swanbourne Probus Club Inc. $1,950

Community Sailing Initiative Inc. $4,000

Dongara Pottery Club Inc. $8,000

Dongara Professional Fishermans Association Incorporated $5,000

Eating Disorders Families Australia Limited $9,000

Friends of Donnelly Village Inc $34,500

Great Southern Centre for Outdoor Recreation Excellence Limited $109,100

Grow Cook Eat Create Inc $4,803

Hummingbird Promotions Inc. $3,831

Jurien Sport and Recreation Centre Inc $1,721

Lions Club of Jandakot Lakes Incorporated $6,908

Move Your Body Studio - Empowering Families Incorporated $14,500

National Ethnic and Multicultural Broadcasters' Council $19,386

Ngaarda Media Aboriginal Corporation $178,978

Noongar Kaakning Aboriginal Corporation $11,800

One Big Voice Festival Inc $20,000

Perth Homeless Support Group Inc $5,692

Perth Modernian Society Museum Association Incorporated $8,250

Philharmonic South West Inc $3,999

Pinjarra Community Men's Shed Incorporated $22,500

Plastic Free Foundation Limited $484,126

Probashi Bengali of Western Australia Incorporated $4,200

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Gosnells 
Sub Branch

$4,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia: Carine Group 
Incorporated

$200,000

Rotary Club of Katanning Inc. $7,865

Seabrees Kids Care Inc $20,000

SecondBite $750,000

Shakespeare Club of Western Australia $1,263

St. Catherine's College $225,557

Station Street Men's Shed (Inc) $3,792

Subiaction Inc. $20,000

Toodyay Fibre Festival Inc. $6,545

University of Western Australia Boat Club $12,500

Vision Australia Limited $174,360

Voice Moves WA Incorporated $2,000

Voice Moves WA Incorporated $4,420

WA Parks Foundation $197,856

Western Australian Amateur Football League (Incorporated) $20,000

Western Australian Swimming Association (Incorporated) $5,706

Wheels Inc. $15,000

Whitford Community, Ratepayers and Recreation Association Incorporated $70,630

Withers Progress Association Inc. $4,000

Yanchep Community Men's Shed Incorporated $5,567

Yanchep Secondary College Bush Rangers WA Cadets $15,000

Total granted $102,039,519



Contact
Level 2, 38 Station Street, Subiaco WA 6008 
Locked bag 66, Subiaco WA 6904

Phone 133 777

Email hello@lotterywest.wa.gov.au

Web lotterywest.wa.gov.au

WA Government wa.gov.au
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